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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Good evening.

I would like to advise all of those

present that notice of this meeting has been

provided to the public in accordance with the

provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act, and that

notice was published in The Jersey Journal and city

website. Copies were provided in The Star-Ledger,

The Record, and also placed on the bulletin board in

the lobby of City Hall.

Please join me in saluting the flag.

(Pledge of Allegiance recited)

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Good evening,

everybody

We are at a Regular Meeting of the

Hoboken Zoning Board of Adjustment.

How about a roll call, Pat?

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Aibel?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Greene is

absent.

Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner DeFusco?

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Grana?
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COMMISSIONER GRANA: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Murphy?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Branciforte?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Fisher?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Here.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner McAnuff is

absent.

Commissioner DeGrim?

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Here.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Great.

Before we get started, let me just

thank everybody on the Board for getting another

Tuesday night spent in civil -- in public service.

I guess we are not quite civil service, but we are

getting close to being civil service.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER GRANA: We're on the way.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: The first matter

scheduled is 601-607 Park Avenue. That matter is

being carried to May --

MS. CARCONE: 26th.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: -- 26th -- thank you

Pat -- without further notice.

So if anybody is here for 601-607 Park,

that is being carried.

So that is all of the administrative

business, I think so.

MS. CARCONE: That's it.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So we are going to

hear 259 First Street/256-258 Newark Street, and I

will not be sitting on this matter.

(Board members confer)

MR. GALVIN: You should step off, all

right?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

(Chairman Aibel recused.)

MR. GALVIN: Here's where we are at,

guys. In order to be able to discuss this matter,

we need an Acting Chairman because neither the

Chairman nor the Vice Chairman are here, so tell me

what you think.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, as the

senior Commissioner, I think it would be appropriate

for me to serve as Acting Chair.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: I will agree

with that.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I'll agree with

that.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well,

actually I think I am the senior person here, having

served --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Longest serving,

right?
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COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Longest

serving, yeah. The number of years, I have served

the longest.

MS. BANYRA: Are you talking age?

Rock-paper-scissors.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Isn't the criteria

how long you served?

MR. GALVIN: No, I don't believe it is

unless you guys want to show me in the bylaws.

I think it would be elected from among,

you know, as Acting Chairman. I would like everyone

to get along. I want us to be a team and get along,

so --

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: So who is the

longest serving?

MR. GALVIN: Well, it may be a hard

call because there are different ways to consider

longest serving. Longest continuous serving or most

years on the Zoning Board.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Most years

on the Zoning Board would be me.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: And that is what

I figured.

MR. GALVIN: But continuing service.
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COMMISSIONER MURPHY: If there is a

vote to be had, is John eligible for a vote tonight?

MR. GALVIN: As an alternate, you are

voting in this matter, right?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: We're all voting.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I am voting, too,

on this one?

MR. GALVIN: No. Who is here and who

is eligible to vote? Let's do it that way also.

MS. CARCONE: Everybody can vote except

Frank DeGrim.

MR. GALVIN: Okay. All right. So then

for the purposes of this, I think --

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: So I vote I

should be Chairman.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I was just trying

to come up with a way, just to understand --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well --

MR. GALVIN: Well, the last time we had

this, did --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: John did it.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah, I did

run the meeting.

MR. GALVIN: -- maybe this time, we can
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let Phil do it.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah. I

think it is a bad precedent to set. I think we set

it last time and --

MR. GALVIN: All right. Well, then

here is what I am going to suggest.

We have a motion and a second for Phil.

If he doesn't receive the majority vote, then there

will be a second motion and a second for another

person to run the meeting.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: We don't want to

vote. That's not fair --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: You realize

it's just a consensus personally, but --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- I recuse

myself.

(Laughter)

MR. GALVIN: I'm sorry. I don't know

how else to settle it, guys.

How else do I settle it?

I can't tell you what to do. I have to

guide you.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Look at these two

guys --

COMMISSIONER COHEN: The last time this
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came up, you asked me whether it would be okay, and

I said sure. So, again, I think because it is a

close call, because I deferred to you last time, I

think it would only be reasonable for you to defer

on this one.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: On the other

hand, I think because you did defer to me on the

last time, it kind of shows that you understand the

person with the longest time --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: I am going to

make a motion just out of fairness --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Go ahead.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: -- to both of

you guys.

I am going to make a motion for Phil.

COMMISSIONER BARNCIFORTE: Yes, go

ahead.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: There is no

priority that I am putting on either of you, but

just because you did it last time, I am going to

make a motion for Phil.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: And you know

what, I will second it. Now it's done. Now we have

to vote. I have to vote on this.

MR. GALVIN: Roll call.
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MS. CARCONE: Okay. Commissioner

DeFusco?

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Grana?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Murphy?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: No.

(Laughter)

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Branciforte?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: No.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Fisher?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: No.

MS. CARCONE: It's a tie vote -- oh, I

am sorry.

Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: That breaks the tie.

(Applause)

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I was going

to suggest rock-paper-scissors there.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: That would be

more fun.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Just for the
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record, we need a -- a --

MR. GALVIN: A what?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: -- we need a

process, so I will just put it like that. We need a

procedure.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Well, now we can

let them take turns.

MR. MARSDEN: Well, Bob wants to go

home.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Normally we would

have Elliot or Phil here -- I mean, Elliot or Jim

here.

MR. GALVIN: Let's fill in some of the

blanks. This is what I know.

When you get a preliminary approval,

you are supposed to meet the conditions of the

preliminary approval, and generally you are going to

go get outside agency approvals, North Hudson Sewer

Authority, Hudson County, if you need something, and

they may eventually impact the plan, and you may

learn things when you're in the process, and they

probably tighten up and go back and do some of the

architectural drawings and start to learn things

that impact the building.
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If they find something really

substantial, what is not uncommon is for an

applicant to come back for an amended preliminary,

which would then be noticed to the public.

But assuming that they don't need to

make any changes to the building, it would be a

final approval. It would not require public notice

because it almost becomes like a check-the-box

automatic approval. If you have all of those

outside agency approvals, you get approved.

In Hoboken, as I understand it, until

2003, there was a -- it was pretty much commonplace

for people to get a preliminary build, and then come

get the final after they build.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: 2013?

MR. GALVIN: No, 2003.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Oh, okay.

MR. GALVIN: Okay. And that is a

ridiculous process. It is not consistent with the

Municipal Land Use Law, and it has taken a long time

for Hoboken to get its act together and approve its

processes.

In 2005 and '6 when I served the

Planning Board, I suspect that I may have assisted

the Board, the Planning Board at that time, with one
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or two final approvals that had been built, and at

the time I remember thinking how odd this was, and I

was told that things were changing, but that is

where we were.

I don't know how this building got

built based only on a preliminary approval, and I

think you are allowed to inquire about that, but I

do think that there are some limits to what we can

do here.

The first question is: If the building

was built exactly according to the plan, and if all

of the outside agency approvals were obtained, then

I think at some point we would probably -- we could

be required by a court, and maybe we should just do

it without being required by a court, to issue a

final approval for this and move along and hope that

Hoboken gets a handle on this, and there aren't any

more buildings built without a final approval.

If you find that something wasn't done

in accordance with the preliminary approval, I don't

know how we correct things that are not done in

accordance with the plan that was described to the

Board at the time.

Had an applicant been moving forward,

and they had a problem with the building or the plan
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during construction, the appropriate thing to have

done would have been for them to write a letter to

the Board, explain the problem, and see if the Board

would have permitted the adaptation to the plan.

Underlying all of this is the

presumption that when you get evidence in the

record, and everybody is under oath, that they are

promising us something. It is a deal. It is a

covenant. We're telling you, we're promising you we

are building a building a certain way, and based on

that in good faith, you guys are approving a plan.

And there is a law. There is some --

in Mr. Cox' treatise, he talks about this, when

there's fraud or mutual mistake, you can set aside a

preliminary approval. In other words, if you tell

us one thing, and you do another, and I think -- but

I think you have to listen to all of the

consequences of how this got built, why it got built

the way it did, how close is it to the existing

plan, what can be done to bring it into greater

compliance with the existing plan. Those are the

things I think we talk about.

There is a third issue that I don't

think that we should be going into. I have said

repeatedly that I have a conflict when it comes to
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the zoning officer. That is true, but I can give

you this legal advice without going into that

territory.

We do not supervise the zoning

official. If there is a problem with what the

zoning official did or how the zoning official did

it, that has to be responded to at the council level

or the administrative level, but we don't supervise

the zoning officer.

We hear appeals. We are a judge, and

she is like the police officer. We hear appeals, so

if there is a problem with the police officer, that

is taken care of by the administration.

I have been advised by Brandy Forbes

that there will be no more buildings constructed

based on preliminary, so I think that that is

clear-cut that the administration is going to stay

on top of that policy moving forward.

As to whether or not we could grant

final approval tonight, the answer is no. I have

been to the site, and I looked at the site with both

our planner and our engineer, and there are things

that have to be still considered. Plans were handed

to us today, so it would be impossible for your

professionals to advise you to grant the final
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approval tonight.

So if we do put this on, we will put

this on for next week or two weeks from now,

whatever our professionals need to examine this and

to come back and tell you whether or not it is for

final.

So where I think we are at right now is

I am sure the Board has questions about how it

happened, what is going on out there, and I think we

should allow Mr. Matule and his witnesses to comment

on that.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Can I ask you a

question regarding that?

MR. GALVIN: Yes.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: In the most

extreme interpretation, if the only thing that had

happened was a mistake was made by the zoning

officer that just put things into play, I am not

saying there was or not, I am saying if that was the

only thing, and all of the outside things got

approved, so they built it, I mean, what do we do at

that point?

I mean, it is not -- I feel like how

could we ever say yes. A mistake was made, and now

we are going to wrap around it for the benefit of
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the developer?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Isn't that a

hypothetical question?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Huh? No, I don't

know -- I don't know enough -- I honestly don't know

the stuff --

MR. GALVIN: Can I say --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- but we do know

the stuff behind it --

MR. GALVIN: -- let me say this -- let

me respond since it was asked to me --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- but we do know

that has happened repeatedly, so --

MR. GALVIN: -- let's talk about this.

I have had other situations in other

communities where things are not built the way they

were supposed to be. Sometimes the Board and the

zoning officer are together and doing everything

proper, and still something does happen anyway,

where something gets built, and it is not supposed

to.

Courts are very hesitant to make

developers or builders rip down something of value,

not that it never happens, but it doesn't happen

very often.
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: Right. I get

that.

So another way to interpret it is, they

can go just around the process, build, and they win.

And I don't understand why we --

MR. GALVIN: It's better to -- one of

the sayings in the field is, "It's better to ask for

forgiveness than to ask for permission," and I am

not endorsing that proposition. But I also have to

be practical, and I am giving you a practical, you

know, a practical answer.

I mean, if at the end of the day, we

get a building that is what we were promised, then

although the process didn't work right here, and I

have been told that the process will work going

forward, I got to believe that the process -- it is

the city itself that has got to enforce its own

process.

I am not saying the developers or any

developer is right by not following the process, but

ultimately, the city has to be the first line of

defense as to the process, and that is all I have to

say on that.

And I think some of that is a political

equation that maybe you have to discuss with other
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people in town hall, not necessarily -- like you

have to look at what your job is. Your job as a

quasi judicial official is: Do they get -- the

question right now is: Do they get final approval.

The complication is that the building

is built, and it is not supposed to be. I don't

have any case on that. Okay, so --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: And what happens

if after all the analysis, the answer is we don't

give approval, then --

MR. GALVIN: Then they will go to

court, and then we'll see what happens.

And then we might -- and if we lose,

and I told you that we might not win, I have done my

job, okay, so --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I would just

say we should hear the testimony, hear the evidence,

determine what findings we want to make about the

process and come to our conclusions based on the

testimony. I just say we shouldn't prejudge the

case until we have heard the evidence and draw the

conclusions based on what we learn.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: But you are

agreeing with our lawyer, who is saying that we're

not going to give final anyway because our
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professionals haven't had --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Oh, I am going

to recommend that we follow our counsel's advice,

and if he's telling us --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Well, it's

just -- right --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: -- that we

can't give a final approval tonight --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- right -- so we

will go through everything --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: -- but I am

just saying that Commissioner Fisher is asking

questions --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- I got you.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: -- that's

making certain conclusions and --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I didn't mean

about the application. I more meant about the

process -- the conclusions about the process that we

know it existed. It puts us in a tough situation.

I think we all acknowledge we are in a tough

situation.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Isn't it kind of

irrelevant that the building is built?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I think so,
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because if the final plan doesn't match the

preliminary approval, then we need to understand

that.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Right, but then it

doesn't --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Then you have a

whole other issue. But if it matches, or if any

changes have been made for, you know --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: De minimus

or --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- whatever, some

kind of major reason, then, you know, that is a

whole other story. It is kind of like we have to

see what we have.

MR. GALVIN: It is still not right.

They should have come to us during the process.

Even if this had gotten final --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Absolutely.

MR. GALVIN: -- and there is one -- I

don't mean to testify but I was out there, and one

door was switched from the left side to the right

side.

You know, that is the kind of thing

that I think changes the architectural viewpoint of

the building and probably should have sent a letter



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

27

to us saying, "Hey, we got this problem. We can't

put the door this way. We have to put the door that

way."

Anything that changes the facade and

the look of the property, I think the Board gets the

call on it, because we are approving these cases.

As painful as this is for everybody, normally there

are two things I thought that were essential in this

case. The attractiveness of the overall design, the

great architectural drawing that we have, and the

fact that we were trying to preserve something that

was historical, and that this was going to be an

adaptive reuse. So those are the tenets upon which

you decide to grant this approval and all of the

variances that go with it.

So as long as those objects are

complied with and met, then you are right, at some

point had it been done properly doesn't make a

difference, so --

MR. MATULE: Good evening, Board

members.

Robert Matule appearing on behalf of

the applicant.

I have been listening to the comments

from the Board, and I guess the only comment I would
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make, and perhaps to echo the Acting Chair's

comments, is that right or wrong, however this

evolved, and I would like to hand these out to the

Board to put them into evidence, this is the first

certificate of zoning compliance that was issued by

the zoning officer on May 25th. And I have taken

the liberty of highlighting the statement that says:

"No certificate of occupancy shall be issued until

final site plan approval has been obtained from the

ZBA."

So if I may just pass those out to the

Board members, I certainly don't think this is the

forum to determine, you know, how or why this was

done by the zoning officer.

It is also my understanding that this

is a procedure that is no longer followed. I think

for the most part, it has not been. This was an

application from 2011.

In addition to that, and I am not

going -- I don't think it is necessary to hand them

out. There were five subsequent amendments to that

first certificate of zoning compliance by the zoning

officer during the course of the construction of the

building, so I am just asking that the Board members

don't draw a negative inference initially that
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somehow my clients were trying to do something

surreptitiously and without permits or, you know,

sneaking around the system. They thought they were

operating in an appropriate manner at the time.

Obviously, hindsight is clear that that

is not the procedure that should have been followed.

So what we are here for tonight, and I

appreciate the fact that we will not get to a

conclusion tonight, but this is an application for

final site plan approval.

I suppose, on the one hand, the Board

has the benefit now of hindsight in that the

building is up, where as typically when you grant

final site plan approval, it is on papers, and how

that gets overseen going forward is an open

question.

I think it is important to know that

the applicant has received their county site plan

approval. They received their soil erosion

exemption. They received their sewer connection

approval. We submitted utility will serve letters.

They received their flood hazard individual permit.

Mr. Galvin or Mr. Marsden always talks

about the IP from the DEP.

These are all things that they normally
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would have received before we came back here and

asked you for final site plan approval and commenced

construction. What is different in this case is

that the building is up.

Typically, as I said, we would come

back here and ask for final site plan approval and

then go get our first certificate of zoning

compliance and our building permits.

I know in some of the initial

communications between Mr. Marsden's office and my

office and the architect, there was a concern about

the fact that the old building was not reused, that

it was demolished, and a new building was built, and

we had the architect prepare some boards, and I

would like to call Mr. Nastasi up at this time and

have him sworn and walk the Board through what was

there and what was reused, and then go through some

of the other exhibits.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: May I interrupt?

MR. GALVIN: Sure.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I for one would

like to see all of the zoning certificates. You

sort have waved and said these aren't relevant,

but --

MR. MATULE: I have no problem in doing
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that.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: You said

there was five amendments. I mean --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: These.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Oh.

MR. MATULE: Want me to read them into

the record and say what they are, or do you want to

just pass them around?

MR. GALVIN: It's up to the Board,

whatever the Board wants.

COMMISSIONER BARNCIFORTE: Pass them

around.

MR. GALVIN: We are going to make it an

exhibit.

(Exhibit A-1 marked.)

COMMISSIONER MARSH: You only have one

copy?

MR. MATULE: I only have one set of

those, yes. I didn't bring nine sets of those

because they were just updates from the underlying

zoning certificate --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: And these

represent the five amendments that you spoke of?

MR. MATULE: Yes.

I believe one of them was attached to
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the underlying application, the last page, referring

to the change. It should be the very last page of

your application.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: No. The last

page is --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Pat, maybe you

can make copies of these for us? Is that --

MS. CARCONE: Do you want them now?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Right now

because only one Commissioner at a time can look at

them.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I think you should

make copies.

MS. CARCONE: Okay. So there are four

pages here, four certificates, and then everybody

got the one dated --

COMMISSIONER GRANA: I have --

MS. CARCONE: -- 5/12 -- 5/25. Okay.

MR. GALVIN: So are we going to wait

for her to come back?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Thanks.

I think it is -- do you think it is

necessary?

(All Board members talking at once)

MR. MATULE: 9/14, 8/8, 3/19, 1/14, and
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9/14, yes --

MR. GALVIN: Is the Board okay with

proceeding while we are getting these copied?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I'm sorry?

MR. GALVIN: Is everybody okay with

proceeding while we are getting the copies?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Uh-huh.

MR. MATULE: Mr. Branciforte, if I

might, just for the record, there is a total of

five, the one I gave plus four more, not five in

addition to that.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Right.

That's what I thought. Okay.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: You can

proceed, Mr. Matule, while we wait for the copies

from the secretary.

MR. MATULE: I do have one more set, if

you want them, while we are talking. I don't know

if you need it, or you want to wait for Pat to come

back --

MR. GALVIN: No. We are getting the

copies.

MR. MATULE: Whatever.

Could we have Mr. Nastasi sworn?

MR. GALVIN: Raise your right hand, Mr.
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Nastasi.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. NASTASI: Yes, I do.

J O H N N A S T A S I, having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

MR. GALVIN: State your full name for

the record and spell your last name.

THE WITNESS: John Nastasi,

N-a-s-t-a-s-i.

MR. MATULE: And I would ask the Board

accept Mr. Nastasi's credentials as an architect.

MR. GALVIN: As he was the architect on

this matter.

MR. MATULE: Yes.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Yes, we do.

MR. MATULE: Thank you.

Mr. Nastasi, obviously you are familiar

with the project. You were the architect at the

initial application?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. MATULE: And you were the architect

during the construction of the project?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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MR. MATULE: Can you describe for the

Board how the existing building that was there was

reused into the building that is now the finished

product, and then if we are going to refer to

boards, we will need to mark them.

THE WITNESS: Okay. I will start.

I prepared this Board for tonight's

presentation. I did receive an email through Mr.

Matule's office from Jeff Marsden showing a

photograph of a Google street view of the project

during the construction with a question of whether

or not this was a complete tear-down new

construction, and from the Google street view it was

certainly unclear.

So I prepared an analytical diagram to

show everybody the exact state of the site from back

in 2011 when we made the submission, and including

now.

On the property of 259 First Street,

there was a two-story brick structure --

MR. MATULE: Just for the record, I

just want to interrupt the architect.

We are going to mark this A-2 because

we marked the zoning certificates A-1.

MR. GALVIN: Right, correct.
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(Exhibit A-2 marked)

COMMISSIONER GRANA: It might be

worthwhile to pass that copy.

MR. MATULE: I only have one reduced

copy. I was hoping we would have handouts for

everybody, but this is a reduced copy of A-2.

All right, Mr. Nastasi. I am sorry.

Please continue.

THE WITNESS: So on the site is an

existing two-story structure, the original Eureka

Theater. It's a two-story brick structure that

spanned from Newark Street on the south all the way

to First Street on the north.

And on Newark Street, a two-story brick

facade, and it has been a barber shop for many

years. It's been a couple of different things, but

there is a two-story masonry facade, a long brick

two-story volume, where the theater was, and on the

First Street side were two floors that had offices

over the years, but there was a two-story mid

century modern facade.

If I put this board up here --

MR. MATULE: We will mark that A-3.

(Exhibit A-3 marked)

THE WITNESS: This is the facade on
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First Street from 2011, a two-story mid-century

facade.

And then this is the facade on Newark

Street from 2011, which actually had a nail salon at

that time.

MR. MATULE: So we will mark that A-4.

(Exhibit A-4 marked)

THE WITNESS: So we have an original

two-story red brick facade and original mid-century

modern yellow brick facade on First Street.

We came to the Board in 2011 and

proposed an adaptive reuse of the structure. This

is the exact board that I presented that night. It

is actually the exact board. You can see how it is

faded.

What we were proposing was that we

would keep this two-story volume, this masonry

volume from Newark Street all the way through to

First Street, and because the property was a double

lot property, we would step a new steel and glass

building up and over the top of the two-story volume

reaching four stories in height aligning with its

neighbor, and we would have four stories of business

retail on this lot.

We would have retail on the ground
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floor at this lot, and we would have two apartments

over here. We would have a duplex and a flat --

MR. MATULE: I am just going to mark

that A-5, this exhibit.

(Exhibit A-5 marked.)

THE WITNESS: As part of the

application --

MR. GALVIN: Oh, can I stop you?

THE WITNESS: Of course.

MR. GALVIN: Okay. Now, I was there

today, and see the tree, and to the right of the

tree is a door. Do you see the door?

THE WITNESS: Of course.

MR. GALVIN: Okay. Above the door

there is a transcom and an indentation of the brick.

Now, in the actual building I saw

today, there isn't any transcom, and there isn't any

indentation of the brick.

Is there a reason for that?

And I mean, there are a couple of other

things that I want to point out.

THE WITNESS: I can tell you exactly

why that is the case, and I was actually planning on

telling you.

MR. GALVIN: Okay. What's that?
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THE WITNESS: I was actually planning

on telling you exactly why as part of the testimony.

I was just starting at the beginning in 2011, if

that's okay.

MR. GALVIN: All right. I just wanted

to -- you know, and there are a couple other things

I will say quickly, too, so you can come back to it,

it looks like the doors -- there are three doors on

this side. One door is handicapped accessible. The

two other doors have a little bit of a step up,

which seems like that looks different than the plan.

The etching is not into the window, but

I understand. Mr. Matule told me that that is

coming.

THE WITNESS: Correct.

MR. GALVIN: All right. So you will

tell us about that.

And then the other side of the

building, the windows -- there were two doors or

there was supposed to be a door on either side of

the window, and now there are two doors on the one

side.

There's probably some other things that

our other professionals have observed. All right.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
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So from the zoning application, our

proposal was to keep 75 percent of the masonry

structure, and we removed 25 percent of the masonry

structure at two locations, one where there was a

nonconforming alleyway, which we had to correct, and

then this section here, which would be adjacent to

the new construction, and also as an opening into

the new backyard.

So as a proposal we were completed. We

were keeping 75 percent of the existing structure

and 25 percent would be removed.

Construction began sometime after the

zoning approval, the first certificate of

compliance. We began construction sometime in 2012.

Sandy hit in October of '13. A couple

things happened on the site when Sandy hit. There

was a 100-year-old tree that was flooded for a week.

The entire lot was flooded for over a week, and as

the spring came, this tree never came back, and one

thing we noticed was there was this hulking tree

that never survived the storm being flooded with

salt water in the winter, so this tree died.

The second thing happened during the

construction of the site being flooded, and during

the excavations, this front facade on Newark
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Street -- the front facade on Newark Street during

construction became destabilized and what happened

here, there is a single brick -- there is a single

brick facade on Newark Street. It's not a 12-inch

thick masonry wall as was the structure. There was

a brick veneer, and you could see the brick veneer

returning here for eight inches.

This became destabilized. My client,

Jeff White, received a call during construction that

there was a partial collapse. Part of this building

got damaged from the brick falling. Brick fell on

the sidewalk. A neighbor contacted him, there was a

collapse. He contacted my office, and we documented

the collapse.

We also surveyed very detailed the

brick facade on First Street, Newark Street, and we

prepared an architectural drawing of the existing

conditions on Newark Street.

You could see the original structure

here. That's the architectural drawing of the

facade.

And as part of the construction, we did

on Newark Street exactly what we did on First

Street, where as part of the application you could

see here, the First Street mid-century modern
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facade, we completely replicated it and put in a

four-story version.

So there was an original two-story

version on First Street. We tore the storefront

out. We built a four-story version on it stealing

the same mid-century cornice, moving it up here, the

same sills, the same lintels, so we have like a

four-story mid-century modern facade, which mimics

the two-story version that was originally there. We

upgraded the storefront down at the ground floor,

used the same Philadelphia iron spot brick.

On the Newark Street side, because of

the collapse and because our survey, the client

rebuilt this two-story facade. That is the original

one that was here before the collapse.

This is the reconstructed one. It is

rebuilt to my specifications, to my survey, to the

same exact height, same sized windows, but during

construction post Sandy, FEMA entered the picture.

Midway through construction, Mario

Patruno at the Building Department issued a series

of updates to the building to respond to FEMA post

Sandy, and the biggest impact of those changes were

all of the utilities in the original drawings were

right here at grade, where everybody's utilities
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are. Post Sandy through the building department,

all of the utilities have been relocated up to the

second floor, and we have to put a major transfer

switch here.

That major transfer switch was a direct

requirement of FEMA. That forced my client to have

to shift this door from my drawings -- from my

drawings slightly west. You can see it was

centered, and it moved slightly west to make room

for the transfer switch. There is a bunker,

concrete bunker here with the electric transfer

switch to move his electric service above the flood

line into the space on the second floor, and that is

exactly where it is now.

One of the impacts of moving that

electric service was that my double lintels, which I

surveyed, once you move the door west, this second

lintel, arched lintel, would have intersected the

main window, so this is the condition that my client

built -- rebuilt the two-story brick facade with a

new entry slightly west to accommodate the electric

service. And as a result, that second lintel, which

would have intersected that was removed.

So we have this facade rebuilt to the

inch, assuming the modification because of the
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electric service, which was brought to us by the

building inspector post Sandy.

MR. MATULE: Let me just stop you for a

minute. I just want to mark this Exhibit A-6.

(Exhibit A-6 marked.)

MR. GALVIN: I am speaking out of turn

because I think everybody needs to hear what I am

saying.

I think if you had gotten preliminary

and final approval, and I think that if you had come

across that situation, I think it would have been

incumbent upon you to send a letter to the Board

telling us that you have to change the facade in

that way. Then I think what would have happened is

the Board might have said, yeah, we understand that,

that's okay.

But that is the proper procedure.

That's the procedure that's used in other

communities in New Jersey, even if it is coming down

from FEMA or from somebody else, if you are changing

the outside box of this building, you got to come

back to us.

So just keep going, John, but it needs

to be said. Everybody needs to understand where I

am coming from and how this is going to change.
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THE WITNESS: The only other thing I

would add to this is that in the original

application, because it is an existing building with

existing floor levels, the ADA was granted by the

main entry.

This door enters into a major common

lobby, which shares -- distributes through the whole

building, that is still is the ADA entry. That

meets ADA.

There is an existing step here, which

stayed, and that building this building connects

through, this is the only ADA entry. The First

Street side, the existing levels, that does not meet

ADA either, but in the original application that was

the ADA entrance.

The only other thing I would add is

that when we went from a two-story mid century

modern facade to a four-story mid century modern

facade, we took the cornice off, recreated it. This

is a recreation of what was there.

This storefront was in really bad

shape. It was updated, and the changes that were

built here are a significant upgrade from the old

storefront. There is a -- a full house printer was

here back at that time, and this storefront has been
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upgraded to a new storefront. But other than that,

the use of the building is the same. The square

footage is the same, and the building is to the inch

exactly the way it was approved back in 2011 when we

were here.

MR. MATULE: And the building has

on-site detention as required by North Hudson?

THE WITNESS: On-site detention and a

couple of other features.

We had a custom vine developed for the

east wall as a consolation to the neighbor, and I

know that Alan Hopp -- Alan Hopp has been working

with Eileen to work out the details for the ivy that

will grow on this wall.

We also presented a still image as a

placeholder for the upper floor, when we were going

to do a printed image on the top floor, and I know

that my client has been working with the Hoboken

Historic Society, and he will present where he is

with that.

MR. MATULE: And you received Mr.

Marsden's letter of 3/31/15, and the update to it,

and you are addressing those comments?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

We received Jeff's letter. David
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Worster of my office has already responded point by

point, and it was sent back to Jeff today. Jeff, of

course, didn't have time to review it today, but we

will take a look at that. But we reviewed

everything and we have no problems with any of the

issues brought up by Mr. Marsden.

MR. MATULE: And it is your testimony

that you have fundamentally constructed here what

was presented to the Board at preliminary site plan

approval, other than the deviations that you spoke

about?

THE WITNESS: It's a hundred percent

accurate, yes.

MR. GALVIN: I have a question. On the

First Street side -- again, I apologize to the

Board, but I was out there and I'm trying to be

helpful.

On the First Street -- yeah, on that

side, the sidewalk there, hasn't been changed in any

way, was it? I don't remember if it was supposed to

or not.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Hudson County I

think.

Didn't the Hudson County approval

require a re-structure of the sidewalk?
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THE WITNESS: From what I understand

from my client, it will be changed as part of the

county application, because I think all streets are

county streets --

MR. GALVIN: And the tree on the other

side, I guess the replacement tree, just so again

being out there, it didn't seem like it is

successful.

You said the one tree had to come down

on the --

THE WITNESS: The old large tree died

as a result of Sandy --

MR. GALVIN: I am not so sure that the

replacement tree is coming back.

Just throw it on the list of things to

think about between now and the time of final.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Could you pass A-2

and A-4 around?

THE WITNESS: Sure.

MR. GALVIN: So I think the Board

should now have their questions answered, and let me

know if you have a legal concern, and I will address

it.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any

Commissioners have any questions?



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

John Nastasi 49

MR. MARSDEN: If I may, can I just

clarify a couple of issues?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Sure.

MR. GALVIN: The only thing I want to

emphasize, though, is we are not going to do the

final tonight, so if it's something you need to make

a determination on, get it, otherwise you should let

the Board go.

MR. MARSDEN: Mr. Nastasi --

MR. MATULE: Can I just mark one?

(Everyone talking at once.)

MR. GALVIN: Hold on one second, guys.

Time out.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: One person at a

time.

Go ahead.

MR. MARSDEN: I just wanted to clarify

a little bit.

One of the reasons why I did contact

Mr. Matule in the first place is I usually read the

resolution before I do my review, and the resolution

on page three indicated that the applicant really

had two more stories on top of the existing stories.

And from what I can see from your

photographs and what I saw in the field, it appeared
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that you saved the foundations, but you had to

remove the two existing floors to rebuild the

building?

THE WITNESS: Actually we saved 100

percent of the foundations, and we saved 75 percent

of the masonry structure.

And the new building is supported -- a

new steel structure sits inside of that masonry

shell. It comes up.

Remember, this was a theater, so it was

a big two-story volume, which was a silent theater,

and the only floor was back here on First Street.

So we kept the structure of the masonry and the

foundations, and then a new steel structure sits

inside of it.

MR. MARSDEN: Because I just wanted to

clarify that the way it was written, it sounded like

you were going to keep the two existing floors and

just build on top of it, but you're saying that

wasn't possible because of the nature of the damage

it's done?

THE WITNESS: It's not. And the second

floor wasn't -- it only was on the First Street

side, and there was a two-story volume originally,

and it remained that way for a hundred years.
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MR. MARSDEN: Thank you.

MR. MATULE: Before we go any further,

I just wanted to mark this other Exhibit A-7.

(Exhibit A-7 marked.)

John, if you would, with respect to

A-7, the image on the left was the rendering that

was presented at the original hearing?

THE WITNESS: This is the actual board

at the original hearing.

This is the Board as it came out of the

construction drawings. This is as it is built

today.

This was the two-story volume in the

original model. This is the two-story volume as

reconstructed. This is the proposed glass

structure, and this is the glass structure as

constructed.

MR. MATULE: Again, the point I just

wanted to make clear is that the image on the right

side is a photograph of what is currently there

right now?

THE WITNESS: This was as approved, and

this is as constructed.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any questions?

Yes, Commissioner DeFusco.
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COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: So, Mr.

Nastasi, I have two questions.

One: In the original rendering of the

building, and I don't have the original plan in

front of me, it was, as you know, many years ago,

the roof line of the building seemed to correspond

with the roof line of the neighboring building, I

think 98 Willow.

In the new rendering, it appears to be

not substantially, but noticeably higher than the

neighboring building. They are both four stories,

so my question to you is: What reason did you have

to do that?

THE WITNESS: So here is the original

rendering, and there was an alignment. At the

parapet on this roof extends above, but the flat

roof aligns. So the roofs align, but the parapet

extends above. The roof height has not changed.

The parapet has changed.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: So the parapet

wasn't depicted in the 2011 drawings?

THE WITNESS: It didn't project all the

way up.

Excuse me one second.

(Witness confers.)
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So one of my architects tells me that

we have more accessible equipment on the roof that

needed that 42-inch parapet to meet fire code, so

what you are looking at is the same height roof, but

just a 42-inch roof parapet.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Would there

have been a way to accommodate those appurtenances

without raising the parapet to be noticeably above

the neighboring building?

THE WITNESS: I think only with a

handrail, but I think a handrail would have not been

as quietly resolved, as more of the white enamel

metal that the entire facade is made of.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Was -- I have

great respect for your work, and you're very

detailed, so I find it a little unusual that there

wasn't -- let me ask the question.

Was there any bracing or historic

perservational materials used to support the facade

and the historic structure?

THE WITNESS: That's a good question.

My client was the contractor. I was

just the architect.

During construction this facade was

braced. I witnessed the bracing. But what happened
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was this red brick, brick facade, during partial

demolition, it was determined it was a single brick

width.

If it were a three-brick facade, it

probably would have been more stable, because this

barber shop facade was a single brick, as we were

doing work excavating, the upper part was bowing and

it started to deform, and there was actually a

partial collapse from the second floor, and actually

a partial collapse that went into that alleyway and

then onto the floor.

So the client was bracing the building.

The contractors were very careful, but it's just

that the single-brick facade became unstable. Even

to the point where when there was a collapse, my

office was called. I immediately -- I am just at

Neumann Leather -- we documented the collapse, but

we also surveyed -- we also surveyed to the T what

was there because the obvious intention was to

recreate that facade, and knowing that it was a

critical part of the architectural character.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Were the same

bricks used, or are they new bricks?

THE WITNESS: They're new bricks, but

they're new red bricks, and you can see on this
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board -- are the boards being passed around?

You should have the Newark Street

boards -- here you go.

This is a good -- this is a good

indication of the red brick facade, 2011, the red

brick facade now, so the bricks actually are very,

very close.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: It is startling

close, but was there a reason that you didn't reuse

the original bricks to maintain that historic

alignment, if you will?

THE WITNESS: No.

These original bricks, they were

patched. They were single -- I think you would get

a more stable facade using a new red brick.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: All right.

Thanks, John. I appreciate it.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

Commissioners?

Commissioner Branciforte?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: You know,

the only real difference I see there between the two

is that you have an older brick facing, I guess,

west and on the western facade, the western wall,
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yeah, and it disappeared on the right side, which is

a little disappointing I guess. It is not the end

of the world, but my questions are more about

administrative, for Mr. Matule I think.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

Any other Commissioners, any questions?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Yeah.

Can we go back to the parapet at the

top?

I mean, how much taller is that than

the -- what was it -- the piece at the very top in

the front you were talking about that and how you

needed it --

THE WITNESS: The roof is at the same

height as drawn, and the roof aligns with the

neighbor. There is a 42-inch parapet, which meets

fire code. That's the difference, but the roof,

which is what we measure by, is aligned with the

neighbor.

So this roof of this building is here,

and this roof is here, so they align, but that is a

parapet to protect from -- the service people up on

top of the roof.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: But the

parapet is always supposed to be there no matter
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what type of stuff is on the roof. I mean --

THE WITNESS: No. It depends upon what

other stuff is on the roof.

You don't need the protection if

servicemen don't have to go to that part of the

roof. But because we have equipment, solar panels,

everything up on the roof, green roof, solar panels,

we had to add that parapet to the roof.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I thought

the parapet was there, so firemen don't walk off the

roof during a fire.

THE WITNESS: No. It has to do with

servicemen going up, as well as part of type of

equipment that's on the roof.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: But just since we

are on that subject, your drawing from before that's

on the floor seems to show a parapet that lines up,

and the roof -- the top of the window is much lower

than the roof line --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah. It

looks like --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- I mean it's

like you just went -- the building got built taller.

I mean, if you look at that drawing,
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the window --

COMMISISONER FISHER: You have a

parapet on the --

THE WITNESS: In the section submitted

originally, the floor to floor heights based on

the -- did not change. It's just that there's a

parapet there. These floor to floor heights is the

same sized building. He did not build a bigger

building.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Well, I am just

saying like if you look where the window is for

there and look --

THE WITNESS: Right. And the roof here

is up here. There is just a freeze at the

ceiling --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Right.

THE WITNESS: -- and right now --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: He made taller

windows --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: -- where the roof

is, there's a window --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- he made taller

windows, is that what you're saying?

THE WITNESS: The windows go right to

the underside of the roof --
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: He just put

taller windows --

THE WITNESS: Taller windows.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Yeah. But that

made the whole building taller --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Right. If --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: -- I mean, what am

I mistaking here?

The building is taller.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: It looks like the

one on the left had shorter windows. The one in the

middle had taller windows, no parapet, and the one

on the right preserved the taller windows and added

a parapet.

Is that right?

THE WITNESS: Yes. And the height of

the building is measured to the roof, not the

parapet, and the roof is the same height as in the

original approval. It just has a parapet that

extends --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: So because you

put in wider windows to the roof line, the windows

appear higher to the neighbors. They're higher than

they do on the original drawing, because you did not

have them going to the roof line in the original
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drawing.

THE WITNESS: Yes, exactly. So here

they align with the cornice, and now they come to

the underside of the roof, but the roof is in the

same place.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

So the floor is below the level of the

top of the window, but it just appears that the

floor is wider, but it is not.

THE WITNESS: The floor is right there

flush -- the bottom of the roof is flush with the

top of the windows, so this window goes right to the

top of the window.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: But would the

addition of the solar panels and green roof, et

cetera, would that have been a variance that would

have required them to come back to the Zoning Board

for?

MS. BANYRA: Solar panels are exempt.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: They're exempt,

okay.

MS. BANYRA: They're exempt. And the

green roof --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Look in the

original plan --
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MS. BANYRA: Yeah, I think it's in the

original plan --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: That was in the

original plan?

THE WITNESS: That was in the

original --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: See, so --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: So it wasn't in

the first certificate of zoning compliance, though,

the green roof, right?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Because it got

added, if you look.

THE WITNESS: We received an update for

that.

MR. GALVIN: Listen, at this point, I

am under the impression, but you guys, you know, if

I find this out, it will change my opinion, that

there is no new variance relief required for this

project, because if that is the case, they would

need an amended preliminary to get the variance.

You can't get the variance on final.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Well, if you look

at the -- the new drawings include a roof detail

showing an additional green roof, skylights, and

eight condenser units?
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So the previous drawings didn't have

that, so was it never in the plan, or it was in the

plan, but it's not on the drawings?

MR. GALVIN: I can't answer that, so I

need some help from the rest of the team, okay?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, that

kind of goes along with what my question is.

You said you had to put the parapet in

because there was additional equipment on the roof?

THE WITNESS: Right. We added the --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: The

condensers?

THE WITNESS: -- condensers were also

added. The green roof was added, right, and the

solar panels were added.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay.

THE WITNESS: We got an update, updated

zoning for the solar panels.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: But

condensers don't -- do condensers count as roof

coverage?

MS. BANYRA: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: They do?

MR. GALVIN: Let me just say this also.

We have to be careful not to make our
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team work on the fly, because they just got the

paperwork --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I

understand.

MR. GALVIN: -- there's no reason why

we can't make that determination between now and

whenever we carry this to, right?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I think it's

important for us to just raise the question as we

are trying to really understand --

MR. GALVIN: It is a very well made

question.

THE WITNESS: For clarity, the presence

of the solar panels made the requirement for the

parapet. It is the presence of the solar panels up

there is what triggered the requirement for the

parapet, and we added the solar panels to the

project and got a zoning update for that.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: And my

question to our planner in general is: Does the

addition of the eight condensers somehow trigger a

roof coverage?

MR. GALVIN: And we are going to look

into that. You know, again, trying to make her do

it on the fly, it's just hard --
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COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I'm just

bringing it up to make sure we cover it --

MR. GALVIN: -- unless she knows it

doesn't, you know.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Let me say, I

am just looking at the resolution. I'm not certain

that the green roof was in the original -- I may be

confusing it with another --

MS. BANYRA: I'm looking at that --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: -- one --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Well, there

was --

MR. GALVAIN: Let me say this also --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- there was in

here --

THE REPORTER: Wait a second.

Everybody can't talk.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Oh, yes, we

can.

(Laughter)

MR. GALVIN: -- the one thing that

needs to be understood, and I think that there is

some misunderstanding of this in the building is

that my resolutions cover a lot, but the drawings,

they have to comply with the drawings.
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When I am doing a condition, I am

trying to grab things that are promises that the

applicant is making during the time of the hearing

that are not specifically on the plans, or something

that I think is so important to us, that it needs to

stand out, and I think when I drafted this

resolution, it was earlier in my experience in

Hoboken, and I probably would put more conditions

down today than I did then because I was relying on

the plans that were submitted to the Board.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I think some of

our -- I think some of our questions to John's point

is we are also all trying to recreate what the

administrative process was here --

(Board members talking at once.)

MR. GALVIN: Shush, shush.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- good, bad,

indifferent, right?

So as we are reading through the zoning

certificates that were asked for, we are seeing kind

of the addition of things, rightly or wrongly,

whether they are typically things that would bring

the applicant back to the Board, the zoning officer

just made decisions along the way --

MR. GALVIN: Well, they submit -- what
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also happens is after they do the plans, they show

us. They draft a whole new set of plans and go to

the building department --

THE WITNESS: Construction drawings.

MR. GALVIN: -- construction

drawings --

COMISSIONER FISHER: Yeah, yeah --

MR. GALVIN: -- and they are supposed

to be --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- you know --

MR. GALVIN: -- on what we got

approved, but with all of the inside stuff that we

didn't think about or all of the roof connections

that we're not thinking about.

We are not analyzing the

air-conditioning and the fire walls and all of that

jazz, so maybe the construction drawings weren't

adequate, so the construction drawings are being

amended.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So, John,

one other quick question.

You saved 75 percent of the wall -- of

the wall --

THE WITNESS: Masonry.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- of the
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masonry.

Are we certain that that masonry wasn't

damaged during Sandy, too, and has to be taken down?

I mean, is it safe?

THE WITNESS: I think it is a good

question, but I think throughout the entire project

we were monitoring the structure, so especially when

the site flooded with water for a solid week, but

the existing structure is a 12-inch brick wall that

stayed stabilized and the footing stayed stabilized.

This was a single brick wall. This is

what had to be stabilized because it was a single

brick thick, while this is a solid 12-inch wall, and

all of that is there.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Was there

anything said about trying to save the interior?

I mean --

THE WITNESS: Well, I think what we did

say was the inside of these brick walls is exposed

throughout the whole building.

When you are inside of the eye doctor's

office on the ground floor, the brick walls are

there.

When you are in the fire stairs, the

brick walls are there.
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When you go to the upper floors, the

brick walls are there.

All of that brick is just exposed

throughout the building, and Dr. Kansky, who is

moving into the ground floor from Washington Street,

the first thing he remarked is that he loved the

fact that the existing brick walls are still there.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Is he in

there now? Is he operating there now?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: No. He's on

Washington.

THE WITNESS: There's no final.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: That was a

good question, because you said when he was moving

in, so that's why I asked.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: When you talked

about the brick collapsing, is it -- is it -- was it

specifically the impact of Sandy, or is it more the

fact that it's is a hundred-year-old building, and

it was just that one --

THE WITNESS: It's probably a

combination of three things. My assessment, it's a

combination of three things.

It's the front facade was a single

brick thick, as opposed to the rest of the
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structure, which is 12 inches. That would be factor

number one.

Factor number two is the site was

flooded with three feet of water for a solid week.

Factor number three is the wrestling of

construction obviously disturbed the site after a

hundred years, and it was probably some balance of

those three factors.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Were the

contractors building experienced in

hundred-year-old, you know, restoration to keep

that?

THE WITNESS: My client was the

contractor. He has built many buildings in town,

and he can testify to the buildings he has built on

Washington Street --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: And keeping

hundred-year old --

THE WITNESS: -- keeping original brick

building --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- structures up,

and what is necessary to do that?

THE WITNESS: Yes. Mr. Matule will be

calling him up.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Commissioner
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Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Is there anything

that -- I mean, now you have an interior brick wall,

right, with exposed brick.

Is there anything that requires it to

stay exposed?

THE WITNESS: Just our intent.

There is nothing in the resolution, but

it was something that my client and I decided as

part of the project anyway that we are expressing

that.

As a matter of fact, we went through

great pains to sit the new steel structure for the

upper floors inside, so you get a beautiful steel

structure with the space in the original brick wall,

so you get a really nice layering of new structure

versus old structure, and that is just part of the

character and the vibe of the building.

If you go and tour it, the lobby is

beautiful and the spaces are beautiful. It's a

nice -- a very nice set of spaces --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: But there's

nothing that -- I mean, that's what you see. That

essentially, that interior wall is what was saved,

right?
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THE WITNESS: Correct. This two-story

volume and footings is what has been preserved.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Right. And

there's nothing that requires it to stay saved -- I

mean --

THE WITNESS: Well, it's saved. I

mean, we saved it.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Right. But I mean

somebody could come along and decide they prefer

blue and paint it, right? I mean, they could.

I am asking you a question, though. Is

that true?

MR. MATULE: Yes. If the question is

were any constraints put on us as part of the

approval to preserve that and keep it as raw brick

or anything, no. There were no constraints like

that. The only constraint was that we reuse the

existing structure, the existing two-story

structure.

THE WITNESS: But I will say, though,

that the fire stairs all the way up, you see all of

the original bricks, and in the spaces adjacent to

those brick walls, the bricks are there.

I am doing the interior spaces for the

tenants, and we are keeping the bricks, so I think
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everybody loves the vibe of the original brick.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

Commissioner?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: I have two

questions.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Commissioner

Grana.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Thank you.

John, when trying to recreate part of a

project that was -- the intent was to preserve the

historic structure itself, but not just the

structure, but the look of that structure, and this

is following on Commissioner DeFusco, is there a

particular reason architecturally why you wouldn't

try to like to save or, you know, reuse some of the

original materials to kind of keep the original kind

of layering effect of that structure versus building

all new bricks?

THE WTINESS: I think it is a good

question.

I think in the case of this front

facade by the time this thing had collapsed and

fallen, this window sill had already been patched.

There was already dry cuts. By the time this thing

comes down and you clean it, there's simply not
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enough quantity of brick to recreate that single

brick facade.

If there was ample brick where we had a

surplus, and we could reuse it, we probably would

have, and I think that would have been our intent,

but I just don't think that practically and

logistically with what was left of this facade, it

was possible at the time.

And you can see here, this whole window

sill is added with a different brick. I am assuming

that maybe a hundred years ago, it might have been

slightly different, so there has already been

modifications and the cracking that didn't allow it.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Okay. Thank you.

Then my second question is related to

the top floor.

In the original rendering, that row of

windows aligns to the row of -- I can't see the

exhibit number, but this -- and this was by I think

by a couple of the Commissioners -- I just wanted to

go through it again.

That top row of windows aligns to the

row of windows of the structure next door.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Yeah.
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And they have been lengthened here. Is

there a particular reason that that changed? It was

a mid flight decision or --

THE WITNESS: I think what happened is

from the zoning renderings to the construction

drawings, all of the structure and details get

resolved.

Remember, this is the zoning to the

approval, and this is six months of construction

drawings. We get all of the technical information.

And when you do the construction drawings,

everything micro adjusts to add all of the technical

input of the engineers and the thickness of the

slabs and everything, and the buildings slightly

adjust and we went from this condition to this

condition. But I would say that at no point in our

presentation in '11 did we say the alignment of this

building with the top of the sill was a critical

architectural thing.

I mean, obviously, we are showing it,

but I don't think it was primary to the design. The

design was really about a white enamel building

stepping over a brick building.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Then maybe that

would have been my provisional question, which you
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just answered, which is was the intent to align to

those buildings from a new perspective on the

street, and I think what you're saying is no.

THE WTINESS: No.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Okay. Thank you.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I just have a

question.

At what point in time did you realize

that you needed the parapet that wasn't in the

preliminary approval?

At what point in the process?

THE WITNESS: It is my understanding

that the presence of the solar panels triggered the

requirement for the parapet. The presence of the

solar panels. Having the solar panels up there

required us to have that parapet.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: And that is

because the solar panels are positioned close to the

street side?

THE WITNESS: The solar panels are

right in this section, up to the Newark Street side.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: If the solar

panels were located more centrally in the roof,

would the parapet be necessary?

THE WITNESS: Well, they start here,



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

John Nastasi 76

and they run all the way to the mid point, I

believe, so there's a large array on the roof up

there.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

If you had a smaller array on the roof,

would it go -- would it go to the point that a

parapet was necessary?

(All Board members talking at once.)

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Just following up

on what you mentioned. You just agreed that the

solar panels are not a variance, but does somehow

the parapet -- the resultant parapet require a

relook --

THE WITNESS: The building height is

measured in Hoboken --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Just to the roof.

THE WITNESS: -- from the roof to the

roof --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: So you

theoretically could have built a ten foot parapet

without any approval --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: No. 42 inches

THE WITNESS: 42 inches.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: So it's 42 inches

as --
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THE WITNESS: That doesn't meet code --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Got it.

THE WITNESS: -- 42 inches meets code,

and that's it. As a matter of fact, you cannot

build a ten foot --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I was wondering

if you were able to answer the question, if there

was a smaller array.

THE WITNESS: If it were a smaller

array, and the array were in a different part of the

building, I guess you could say that that parapet

could not be there --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

Thank you.

THE WITNESS: -- of course, we are

trying to maximize the solar array to get as much

solar electricity as possible.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

Yes, Commissioner DeGrim.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: When was it

decided to put up the solar panels?

THE WITNESS: I don't know exactly the

answer, but my client may be able to answer that

question.

I don't know the exact answer to that
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question. I would have to check all of the zoning

approvals to see which one -- which one --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Well, the --

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Was it part of

the original design?

THE WITNESS: The solar panels were not

part of the original design. They were added.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- it looks like

this certificate, dated September 14th, 2012 is the

one that references the new drawings with the solar

panels, so somewhere around that time.

The first one was May of 2012, and the

second one was September of 2012.

(Board members confer.)

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I don't know

if that's all five, though.

THE WITNESS: I mean, one of the things

that happened throughout construction, of the many

things that happened, is that the building, which

was not a LEED building back in 2011 when we had it

approved, has now applied for LEED silver, and part

of the LEED silver was adding the solar panels and

green roofs and making sure that we hit all of the

things that would give us LEED certification, and

that application has been submitted.
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ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

questions?

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Sorry, one more.

With regard to the red, the new red

facade, what -- are they different sized bricks?

I mean, what is -- why is it that you

don't have the -- that the old brick -- that you see

along -- yeah, right there --

THE WITNESS: So originally, this was a

brick veneer. It was one brick thick. It returned

for eight inches or one brick and stopped and then

the old brick was there.

This is a telltale sign that it is a

veneer.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Correct.

THE WITNESS: When we built the new

facade, we brought the red brick deep into this

space, which is better detailed than just showing

the veneer, the same sized brick. They're standard

brick. It is just that we brought it deep into that

reveal, which I think is a better detail than

showing just the veneer, because it is no longer

veneer. It's now a real brick facade.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: When you say

it's no longer a veneer, how thick is it then?
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THE WITNESS: Well, this is a real

masonry wall now, while this was a single brick on a

frame, which is what became unstable.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: And how wide or

how thick is the masonry wall?

THE WITNESS: I think it is an

eight-eight brick facade. It's not --

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Thank you.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

Ms. Banyra, our professional, has a

question.

MS. BANYRA: Yeah.

Just, Mr. Nastasi, so you just

indicated that you knew that the front facade was a

brick veneer, so did you not suppose that maybe it

would come down then --

THE WITNESS: I did not say I knew.

I said it became apparent during

partial demolition that it didn't have a second and

third width behind it of masonry, that it was a wood

structure.

Remember, when we submitted in 2011, I

think somebody was still living in that building, so

it was determined it was a veneer --

MS. BANYRA: I thought just your
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testimony just now was saying you can see from the

side here that it's a veneer --

THE WITNESS: You could see from the

side how this red brick folded --

MS. BANYRA: Right.

THE WITNESS: -- only the depth of the

veneer, and that's it, so I would have testified to

that back in '11, if I knew --

MS. BANYRA: I mean, I misunderstood,

because I understood your testimony as saying, that

if you look at it here, it's a veneer. We know it's

a veneer and --

THE WITNESS: The single brick returns

for one brick's width and that's it.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay.

Any other questions?

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Just one quick

question.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Commissioner

Fisher.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: When did you

start construction?

What was the date that you started?

THE WITNESS: The construction permits

were granted December 4th, 2012.
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MS. BANYRA: But is that when

construction started, though?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: That was

before.

THE WITNESS: That was the demolition

permit that was granted then.

The foundation permit was granted in

February of '13, and then a full construction permit

in July of '13, so there were three construction

permits granted to my client.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: And does

construction typically start before final is begun?

THE WITNESS: Well, I think Mr. Matule

testified that --

MR. MATULE: I didn't testify.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I didn't

actually --

MR. GALVIN: Yes. He is not on the

hook.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- I may have

turned my ear or something. I wasn't sure if you

did respond to that, but --

MR. MATULE: No. What I had said is

that, and I think counsel had alluded to it earlier,
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that in years past, the practice was to get

preliminary, build your building --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: In Hoboken.

MR. MATULE: -- and then come back for

final, and that -- and I think Hoboken was probably

the only municipality in the whole State of New

Jersey that did that.

Even Mr. Cox in his book refers to it

as wrongly so, but in any event, that was the

process then. That is not the process now. How

this fell between the cracks, I can't say. I'm not

here to throw the zoning officer under the bus.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Commissioner

Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I just want to

ask -- I just want to make sure I understand this.

All of -- you started construction --

you started demolition in December?

THE WITNESS: I have notes that my

client pulled a demolition permit. We have notes of

a demolition permit granted December 4th, 2012 --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Five weeks after

Sandy --

THE WITNESS: -- we have a foundation

permit granted February 26th, 2013.
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COMMISSIONER MARSH: I'm sorry. Say

that again. Foundation --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Sandy was in

2013, not 2012.

THE WITNESS: Sandy was October 2013.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: No, 2012.

THE WITNESS: 2012.

There were three construction permits

issued to my client. I think he had a demolition

permit, a foundation permit and then a full

construction permit.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: When was

foundation?

THE WITNESS: The foundation permit was

February 26th, 2013.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: So I mean, all of

the Sandy damage had happened before you even got a

demo permit.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

questions?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: No. I just want

to make sure I understand this.

You got your last certificate of zoning

compliance in September of 2012.

Then you found out -- then Sandy
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happened, and you found out all of these problems,

and then you broke ground?

MR. MATULE: I can have Mr. White come

up. He might be able to better give you an answer.

Mr. Nastasi wasn't supervising the construction.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Fair enough.

MR. MATULE: If you want, I could call

him up right now.

MR. GALVIN: I think that's what should

happen.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Well, there

might be questions from the public.

MR. MARSDEN: Can I ask you one quick

question?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Yes.

MR. MARSDEN: Mr. Nastasi, the plans

that you emailed, if you have a minute after the

meeting, I need to go through them with you because

there is some sort of a technical issue --

THE WITNESS: A what?

MR. MARSDEN: -- there's a technical

issue with plotting, so I need to just sit down with

you.

THE WITNESS: David would be able to go

through that in detail.
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MR. MARSDEN: Okay.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: So let's open

it up to the public --

MR. GALVIN: I'm not sure it's a public

thing, but yeah.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: -- if anybody

has any questions of the architect.

Yes. Ms. Healey, come up.

MS. HEALEY: Leah Healey, 806 Park.

You testified that 75 percent of the

masonry structure was to be preserved?

Were you specific in your application

about what the 75 percent specifically was?

MR. MATULE: In the initial

application, the preliminary application?

MS. HEALEY: In your preliminary

approval.

THE WITNESS: It was never cited to

that level of detail.

All I am presenting is actually

existing conditions, and I am also presenting that

at 75 percent remaining --

THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. Can you talk

up a little bit?

THE WITNESS: -- 75 percent is
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remaining and reconstructed, and none of that was

part of the original zoning. I am just presenting

it as actual evidence to benefit the Zoning Board.

MS. HEALEY: What was your

understanding of the amount of the original

structure that was to be retained per the

preliminary approval?

THE WITNESS: Since no percentages were

dictated, I guess it goes based on the drawings, and

the way these sections have been removed are exactly

how they were removed in the drawings in the

original -- so it is the same -- it's the same

adjacencies in the original plans. It's just a

three-dimensional diagram for the Board's clarity

just explaining where that two-story structure

exists.

MS. HEALEY: And so the demolition is

the white area on the drawing then?

THE WITNESS: Correct.

MS. HEALEY: How come you don't show

the white area of the front demolition?

THE WITNESS: Because this was

reconstructed, and this was reconstructed, and that

falls under the reconstructed category and not the

demolished category.
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MS. HEALEY: Can you explain what the

difference is between reconstructed and demolished?

THE WITNESS: Reconstructed is put back

in its original location. Remaining is remaining,

and removed is permanently removed.

MS. HEALEY: So if you need to put

something back in its original location, you have to

remove what was there in order to put something back

in its place?

THE WITNESS: For clarity, this is a

document and a diagram that describes the existing

condition as it is today, and that these words

accurately reflect the condition as it is today. So

if it is reconstructed, then it is reconstructed.

MS. HEALEY: Can you tell me why the

front wall -- the one brick width --

THE WITNESS: Veneer.

MS. HEALEY: -- veneer was demolished?

THE WITNESS: Excuse me?

MS. HEALEY: Was the front wall with

the one brick veneer demolished?

THE WITNESS: It actually collapsed,

and then it was subsequently taken down for

stabilization after collapse. But actually what

triggered the event by my client and the contractor
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was a collapse of bricks on to the street.

MS. HEALEY: I think you mentioned one

or two bricks or the entire front facade collapsed

onto the street?

THE WITNESS: I mentioned actually not

one or two bricks, but that the upper section had

bowed, fallen onto the street. One or two bricks

damaged the building next door. Bricks hit a car,

and a neighbor called my client and complained.

MS. HEALEY: So this occurrence of

bricks falling onto cars and onto the sidewalk, when

did that occur?

Were you on the site when it occurred?

THE WITNESS: I was not on the site

when it occurred.

MS. HEALEY: Who was on the site when

this occurred, do you know?

THE WITNESS: I don't know.

MS. HEALEY: Do you know if there was a

demolition contractor that was hired in association

with this project?

THE WITNESS: What was the question?

MS. HEALEY: Do you know if there was a

demolition contractor hired in association with this

project?
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THE WITNESS: My client is a

contractor, and he can answer those questions.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: He will be the

next witness.

THE WITNESS: I was just the architect.

MS. HEALEY: I just thought he might

know.

Did you have discussions with the

people involved with the bricks falling off?

I mean, what was your role in

connection with that?

THE WITNESS: My role was to document

the facade and produce a drawing that could recreate

that facade in its condition that it originally was.

MS. HEALEY: Did you have any role in

seeking the demolition permits for your client?

THE WITNESS: I already told you I

didn't have that role.

MS. HEALEY: You didn't have the role?

THE WITNESS: I did not. I was not a

contractor.

MS. HEALEY: You didn't provide any

drawings to the demolition office with respect to

the demolition?

THE WITNESS: There is drawings with
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respect to demolition, which part of the building

would be removed and which wouldn't be.

MS. HEALEY: And have those drawings

been provided to this Board?

THE WITNESS: They are part of the

construction office.

MS. HEALEY: Did you provide a copy to

this Board?

I know you provided the certificate of

compliance, but did you supply any drawings in

connection with the demolition of the building?

THE WITNESS: No. The construction

drawings are usually not, you know, the property or

purview of the Zoning Board, but those drawings are

on file and part of public record.

MS. HEALEY: Would you be willing to

supply them to the Board by the next meeting?

THE WITNESS: If that is okay with you,

Bob.

MR. MATULE: If the Board wants them.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I don't think

that is necessary.

MR. GALVIN: The other thing I think

that needs to be said, and I am saying it to

everybody, we cannot -- there is a limit to what we
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can do here. I mean, if there is fraud, you know,

and I don't know that we are anywhere near that, you

know --

MS. HEALEY: I am looking at the Motley

decision, so part of my question is involved here

with that.

MR. GALVIN: I never considered the

Motley decision as having any applicability in this

case, and that goes to a nonconforming use that is

completely destroyed.

I think the issue here is

representations were made that this was an adaptive

reuse, and the question is: Did it meet the spirit

of what was promised to the Board.

I think that is an underlying issue.

Anything to do with the zoning

official, though, is beyond the scope of this Board

because we don't supervise that, that official.

MS. HEALEY: I understand that's your

position. I was just trying to get a better

understanding of what happened on the site that led

to the change in this building.

MR. GALVIN: We have the same interests

in figuring that out, but I just want you to know

what we are looking for.
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MS. HEALEY: Okay.

You did testify, Mr. Nastasi, about

wrestling of construction. Can you tell me what you

meant by that?

THE WITNESS: Yes. It is very

straightforward, that the act of construction in any

adaptive reuse in any renovation of any house, any

building, will cause some disturbance as a natural

part of construction.

MS. HEALEY: And I believe you said

that that was one of the three reasons why --

THE WITNESS: One of three potential

reasons in any percentage, which can be somehow

prognosticated.

Like somebody asked me, what could have

been the causes, and I said it could have been any

one of those three factors.

MS. HEALEY: So you can't say it was

all of one?

THE WITNESS: Of course not.

MS. HEALEY: And you don't know what

the percentages or which it was?

THE WITNESS: Of course. Of course, I

could not say -- of course, I could not determine

those percentages. That would be an unfair
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assessment by anybody.

MS. HEALEY: You also mentioned that

the tree in front of this building died after Sandy.

THE WITNESS: It died. I saw it in the

spring not come back, and I have been across the

street from that building for 25 years. It never

bloomed again. It died.

MS. HEALEY: Are you at all an expert

in trees?

THE WITNESS: I am an expert in seeing

a dead tree and knowing it is a dead tree. I saw a

dead tree, and it was dead. That's all --

(Laughter)

MS. HEALEY: You are not holding

yourself out as an expert on whether a tree is alive

or dead?

THE WITNESS: Well, I can tell you when

a hundred-year-old tree was not blooming and it

wasn't blooming. I can tell you that for a fact,

and it was actually startling to me that this tree

that used to cover this facade, all of a sudden,

wasn't blooming, and it was very obvious that it

wasn't blooming because it was a pretty lush tree.

MS. HEALEY: Do you have any idea

whether your client ever had the tree tested?
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THE WITNESS: I do not know that at

all.

MS. HEALEY: And has the tree been

replaced?

THE WITNESS: It is my understanding

that my client has replaced the tree with a new

tree.

MS. HEALEY: Do you know whether your

client went to the Shade Tree Commission for

approval?

THE WITNESS: I have no idea. I have

no idea.

MS. HEALEY: And was there anything in

your application before this Board with respect to

that tree and the preservation of that tree?

THE WITNESS: No. It was never part of

the original.

MS. HEALEY: Never part of the

landscaping plan?

THE WITNESS: Just that the tree was

existing.

MS. HEALEY: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

witnesses -- I'm sorry, any other member of the



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

9696

public?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Motion to

close public portion.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Second?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: All in favor.

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative.)

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Opposed?

None.

Mr. Matule, your next witness?

MR. MATULE: Mr. White, and if you

would bring up the photo with you.

MR. GALVIN: Raise your right hand,

please.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. WHITE: I do.

J E F F R E Y W H I T E, having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

MR. GALVIN: State your full name for

the record and spell your last name.

MR. WHITE: Jeffrey White, W-h-i-t-e.

MR. GALVIN: Thank you.

MR. MATULE: Mr. White, you are the
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principal of the owner of the property, which is the

subject of this application?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. MATULE: And you heard Mr.

Nastasi's testimony regarding the events surrounding

the renovation and new additions on the building?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I have.

MR. MATULE: And you were the general

contractor for the project?

THE WITNESS: No. I was not the

general contractor.

I am the owner. I had contractors, but

that was a mistake that John made. I was not the

actual contractor of the building.

MR. MATULE: You hired a general

contractor to oversee the construction?

THE WITNESS: I hired a construction

manager and hired many subcontractors.

MR. MATULE: You heard a question asked

before about whether the facade of both the barber

shop on Newark Street was braced during the

demolition phase of the project. Was it braced?

THE WITNESS: Yes. There was temporary

bracing.

My understanding of the plans as drawn
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by the architect, it was supposed to be temporary

bracing. I believe it was after foundation or

during foundation, permanent bracing would have gone

in.

Now, there was considerations during

construction of this as well knowing that this

structure was fairly weak, and the structures around

are also fairly weak.

For instance, it was originally speced

that there would be impact piles on the site, which

you see around town, where they're driving steel or

trees into the ground.

One of the delays actually, we changed

engineering to put in screw ponds because of the

entire area, not only this -- this was definitely

the weakest here, but the ones on First Street were

also fairly weak and they still exist. 257 First

Street was a fairly weak building also. It has

structural problems.

MR. MATULE: So you put in helical

piles?

THE WITNESS: We put in helical piles

instead of impact piles.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Which just

means you basically screw them into the ground
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instead of driving them, right?

THE WITNESS: Screw piles, exactly,

yes.

But the difference was, this -- this

was so weak, and once they started doing the

cleanout and the demolition, it became clear it was

going to be very difficult to save this. This whole

section of this top had no mortar in it and was

basically dust. We would have to hand take off some

of these during bracing.

This whole section here was not

original. It wasn't patched, but it was literally

standing there.

Once they started digging underneath

also, the foundations of that particular part of the

structure were minimal, if anything. It was

basically dirt. There was no gray beams. There was

no anything there.

MR. MATULE: How did you come to learn

about the partial collapse of the front of the

building?

THE WITNESS: I was called. I had

several phone calls when it happened. A neighbor

and several people on the site.

There was a car hit apparently. A
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driver stopped, came on the site. One of my

people -- one of the people on the site called me

and said there is a guy, his car was hit with

bricks. I told him give him my name, give him all

of the information.

He did.

They went out to the site. Apparently

it was only his tire. It wasn't anything worse than

that.

One of my neighbors called. Alan

Wellner called and said there were bricks on the

ground and in the street, so I had three or four

phone calls. I wasn't at the site.

I immediately called John who is a half

a block away and asked him to go look.

MR. MATULE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I have a

question.

Did your contractor that was bracing it

have experience with a hundred-year-old building in

keeping -- restoring that?

THE WITNESS: I believe so. I also

would like to say that I have done several adaptive

reuses in keeping all of the structures in this

town. I have been a builder in this town for 25
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years. So this is not new. This was something that

was important to me to keep the building and the

architecture, and if it could have been saved,

certainly would have. It is not an offhand decision

to not keep it. There was pains to try to, but it

was just too weak. There was nothing there.

Even this whole section, I remember

before we did the complete demo, you could see there

was no mortar in any of these joints down here on

the ground, even just walking by.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Let me ask you a

question. If you knew that, and you knew there was

a condition in the original resolution to keep it,

then why wouldn't you have come back to the Board?

THE WITNESS: Well, that was before

there was a collapse.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: You just said --

you just said that you knew that it was too weak.

THE WITNESS: Not too weak. I knew it

was weak. You can't tell how weak.

What happens is, in my opinion, and I

am not structural engineer or an architect, but once

you cut out the joists, it is a system. I think

that was the only thing that was really keeping this

part of this structure stable was the joist system.
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And because this was as per plan to cut out up to

about, I think it was a three-foot return on this

because this is open back here, that system was now

destabilized, and made it very weak to keep up. And

even though -- now that it was just a brick facade

being propped up, which had been beaten and scarred

over many years and patched and not well.

Even this large patch that was here

wasn't even keyed in, and I think there is a picture

of it that you can see.

You can see this isn't even tied into

the other brick. It is just sitting here, this

whole section. At some point in the past, I take it

when this was filled in, they didn't even tie it in.

It was just literally sitting there. You can see

the lines here.

So I mean, it had been treated well

over the years. I certainly wanted to keep it.

There was no -- it was part of my intention to keep

it. I have done it in other structures in this

town. I adaptively reused other structures in this

town, where I had collapses before also and had to

rebuild. I can talk about those, and you can go see

those.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I guess my
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response to that is I have lived in areas that have

had buildings much older than this, but they have

gone to great lengths to preserve facades. And if

it continuously you are saying all buildings

collapse, maybe we're just not doing a good enough

job of bracing it and trying to preserve it, and

maybe there is a better way of doing it.

THE WITNESS: There may be. But

looking back, the patient just didn't survive. I

have done it other times in town. This time it just

didn't get that far along.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Any other questions

for the witness?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, so who

went down to the building department and signed the

building permits?

THE WITNESS: In terms of signing

permits --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: When you

get -- when you got --

THE WITNESS: -- the contractors did.

Different contractors filled out the permits and

submitted them.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: For

demolition.
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So you never signed any of the building

permits then?

THE WITNESS: I don't sign -- no one

signs the permit except the inspector. But the

applications were done by the contractors.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay. So

you never signed any of the applications then --

THE WITNESS: No --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- so the

contractors did?

THE WITNESS: -- no.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So when

Irene hit, though, in 2011, November 2011, did you

own the building then?

THE WITNESS: When Sandy hit?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: No. Irene.

THE WITNESS: Irene?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: The year before.

THE WITNESS: 2011?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: November of

2011, right?

THE WITNESS: August --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: August 2011?

THE WITNESS: I may have owned the

building then.
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COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: And did it

flood then? I mean --

THE WITNESS: Perhaps. I don't recall.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- because I

am curious if you knew ahead of time this was a

problem, you know, I just don't see how you didn't

know that this facade was going to come down with

all of the work that needed to be done and all of

the problems with the masonry.

So I am trying to get a time line here

and figure out, you know, along the way. I mean

even a building inspector, none of the housing --

building inspectors that looked at it when you went

for your mortgage or your property assessment,

nobody said, hey, this brick is going to come down?

THE WITNESS: We had over, I want to

say, a dozen inspections from the building

department.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Not the

building department. I'm talking about your people

from the bank or from wherever that you went and

looked at.

You are a seasoned guy. How did you

not know this wasn't going to last?

THE WITNESS: Well, I had engineers on
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the building. I had architects on the building

also. So as an owner, I hired these professionals.

I hired the contractor.

The contractors all seemed

professional, had experience. They were aware of

the conditions. I don't tell them to -- they see

the contract, and they see the plans. That is all.

And I am a seasoned owner. I have

built many things. So looking back --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: No. I'm

not --

THE WITNESS: -- are there other things

that could have been done?

Of course, there is always other

things.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

questions?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I just want to ask

that again.

So you saw all of these things wrong.

You knew it was weak. You knew -- and you have

construction drawings, and you handed it off to

somebody, and then you just -- I mean, you didn't --

did they know?

I mean --
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THE WITNESS: Yes for sure. But see, I

believe it is even in the contract about bracing --

(Someone sneezes.)

THE WITNESS: -- God bless you.

COMMISIONER BRANCIFORTE: What was in

the contract? I'm sorry?

THE WITNESS: Regarding bracing.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I mean, you just

said when you took down the -- what did you call it?

THE WITNESS: The joists.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: -- the joists, the

whole thing collapsed.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I said that's my --

no, I didn't say the whole thing collapsed then.

I said my guess is, and I am not an

engineer that --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: But you had an

engineer, right?

THE WITNESS: Yes, several engineers.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Did you ask him?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: And he said this

is going to be safe for this facade, right, when you

take apart these joists?

THE WITNESS: Generally the demolition
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plan I believe was issued by the architect.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: So we are doing

this now?

THE WITNESS: No. I am just saying,

these professionals that I hired, who are licensed,

who do these things, I followed their plans. Their

plans are submitted to the town. They are submitted

to the building department. I don't deviate from

those things. I don't tell the contractors to

deviate from those things. I can't even technically

instruct them. I would be violating probably all

sorts of insurances.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Okay.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

questions?

Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: I just wanted to go into

one, unless the Board has some questions, I wanted

to go into the image.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay. Our

professional, Mr. Marsden, has a question.

MR. MARSDEN: Yes.

Did you have a structural engineer, a

geotechnical engineer, look at the foundations

before you did --
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THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. We had

geo-tech, we had structural and mechanical.

MR. MARSDEN: Thanks.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Is that all

from the Board?

Yes, Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: One of the other facets of

this application was that there was going to be an

image superimposed on the glass on the top floor of

the new building, where we all learned the new word

"fritted."

Mr. White, you have been working with

the Hoboken Historic Museum to come up with an image

that is going to be put on that glass?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I have been working

with Bob Foster and Kevin Shaunessy and --

MR. MATULE: Did you come up with an

image?

THE WITNESS: Yes. We have an image.

I don't know -- from "On The Waterfront," which we

believe was the quintessential Hoboken movie to

harken back to the fact that this was a movie

theater, The Eureka.

MR. MATULE: And this is the image you

want to present --
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THE WITNESS: Yes. This is the

image --

MR. MATULE: -- to the Board to --

THE WITNESS: -- yes, we have done some

test patches already --

MR. MATULE: -- to put on the glass?

THE WITNESS: -- on the glass over here

just to get cropping and sizing and general

conditions on how this will look and how light will

pass through.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Can you pass

that up?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Mr. Matule, do

you want to mark that?

THE WITNESS: I would like to get that

back and give you a copy.

MR. MATULE: I guess that would be A-8.

MR. GALVIN: We are going to allow you

to keep it, but we will need a copy for evidence.

MR. MATULE: I'm sure we can get a

copy.

Can you just put that on the back of

it?

(Exhibit A-8 marked.)
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. MATULE: Just for the record, we

are marking this photo that we are proposing to use

for the fritted glass on the facade of the Newark

Street side.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Is that all you

have for your witness, Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: Yes. That is all I have.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any members of

the people like to ask questions of this witness?

Mr. Vance?

MR. VANCE: I am Jim Vance. I live

here in Hoboken.

When you made application here, you

were really committed to do an adaptive reuse, which

means you would save this building, take necessary

measures to save this building, this facade in

particular?

MR. MATULE: I am going to object to

the question because I don't think that is what

adaptive reuse per se is. The adaptive reuse was to

reuse the existing structure that is there.

MR. GALVIN: I think that's an

appropriate question. I appreciate your objection,

but I think that is one -- we are experiencing this
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in other applications.

Unfortunately, this is coming up in a

way where you are getting it because we have been

told in a lot of buildings that we are saving walls,

we've saving buildings, and then we're finding out

that is not the case. So adaptive reuse means that,

in my opinion, I don't know if I should you give my

opinion. Maybe our planner wants to.

Do you want to give an opinion?

MS. BANYRA: I mean, I think it is

self-evident to me. It's adaptive -- you are

reusing a building, and I think, you know, the

conversation about taking down 25, 45, what

percentage, I mean, you are reusing the building.

I think interior certainly things

change and get moved around, but certainly, you

know, the shell and/or floor plates are typically

kept. I mean, that's reusing the building.

MR. GALVIN: If you take a firehouse

and you're going to turn it into a restaurant, you

have to make changes to the building in order to

accommodate the restaurant, but basically you are

keeping the majority of the facade of the firehouse,

and it's still a firehouse.

But back to your question. Try to ask
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your question again.

MR. VANCE: As the owner of this

building when you came before this Board with an

application, you make the application saying we are

going to do an adaptive reuse on this building, did

you not?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: And at that time, maybe

when you bought it, were you aware of the fact that

this facade had some flaws and would need special

attention?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: Would it not have been

appropriate considering the fact that you got --

that you were getting approval here, partially

because of your adaptive reuse to have taken all of

the necessary measures to stabilize that facade?

THE WITNESS: I believe all necessary

measures were taken between my engineers, my

professionals.

I think the patient just couldn't

survive it, whatever it was, the hundred years. I

don't think it was ever built to be an everlasting

structure or a very long lasting structure, and

precaution was taken to keep it. The intention was
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to keep it. However, it collapsed.

MR. VANCE: I again ask the question,

that you had engineers, you had architects. Did

they inform you, and I assume as the owner of a

building, you had -- this was hands-on. You just

didn't throw it at the engineer and architect, and

say, I'll be back next year to see how you're

doing."

You were hands-on, I assume. Is that

correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: So it became apparent,

maybe you knew when you bought it, but certainly

later on through your architects and engineers, that

this facade had some problems.

You said here that it was weak, have

you not?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: And that the mortar was

crumbling from -- between the bricks.

Is there -- would it be possible from

an engineering standpoint point, structural

standpoint, to stabilize this facade in such a way

that it could be preserved?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Mr. Vance, he
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is not an engineer. He is the owner of the

building.

I mean --

MR. VANCE: Do we have -- I agree, but

should this Board not get an engineer to answer

these questions?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Well, I'm just

saying you should ask questions he is able to

answer. That is all.

MR. VANCE: Well --

MR. GALVIN: Yes. Really typically

what we do is we ask questions of the witness about

what they testified to.

MR. VANCE: Okay.

MR. GALVIN: And I think Mr. Marsden

asked Mr. Nastasi if they had -- didn't you ask

about the --

MR. MARSDEN: Were they structural

engineers and geotechnical engineers, and the answer

was yes, they did.

MR. VANCE: Thank you so much.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Any other

people?

Ms. Healey?

MS. HEALEY: What was the name of your
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structural engineer?

THE WITNESS: I don't know off the top

of my head.

MR. GALVIN: Mr. Nastasi, do you know

who it was?

THE WITNESS: We had several. AAES

Engineering.

MS. HEALEY: Several, so who in

addition to AAES?

THE WITNESS: I think it was

geotechnical --

MS. HEALEY: I'm talking structural

engineer.

THE WITNESS: A geotechnical engineer

worked with us --

MS. HEALEY: I'm just asking for a

structural engineer --

THE WITNESS: AAES.

MS. HEALEY: Was there any more than

the structural engineer?

(Everyone in the audience talking at

once.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Hang on, hang

on, hang on. Only one person can talk at a time.

Mr. Nastasi, why don't you come up?
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MR. NASTASI: AAES is the engineer of

record for the structure of the building.

MS. HEALEY: When did you hire the

structural engineer, do you recall?

THE WITNESS: I would say -- I don't

recall exactly, but I know it couldn't -- I don't

think it could be hired before the actual plans were

drawn, correct?

So whenever the full set of plans were

made, the structural engineer was hired.

MS. HEALEY: The full sets of plans for

what?

THE WITNESS: For the building,

construction plans.

MS. HEALEY: Okay. But how about for

preliminary approval?

THE WITNESS: No. I don't believe a

structural engineer is required for preliminary

approval.

MS. HEALEY: So you didn't have a

structural engineer when you drew up these plans for

the preliminary approval?

THE WITNESS: No.

MS. HEALEY: When did your structural

engineer first go to your site?
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THE WITNESS: I don't have the exact

date.

MS. HEALEY: Was it before the bricks

fell off or after?

THE WITNESS: Probably after.

MS. HEALEY: And you indicated that

there was some bracing --

THE WITNESS: But, again, the geo-tech

was there before, who was the soils engineer. He

was one of the first ones there.

MS. HEALEY: Any other engineer on the

site before?

THE WITNESS: No.

MS. HEALEY: You indicated that there

was some construction bracing that was put up.

Who did that?

THE WITNESS: That would have been the

contractor.

MS. HEALEY: What contractor's name was

that?

THE WITNESS: ACC Construction.

MS. HEALEY: ACC.

Did you ever use them before?

THE WITNESS: I may not have directly,

but they may have worked on my other sites through
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other contractors or subcontractors, so potentially

yes.

MS. HEALEY: Potentially yes?

THE WITNESS: Yes. It is possible.

There is a contractor who has been in town for many

years, who has done a lot of work in Hoboken.

MS. HEALEY: And you indicated that you

done a lot of other adaptive reuses in the Hoboken

community?

THE WITNESS: I have done some, yes.

MS. HEALEY: Can you give us the

addresses for those adaptive reuses?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

I did 132 Bloomfield Street, 637-639

Garden Street, 829 Washington Street, and 1000

Garden Street.

MS. HEALEY: Were any of those adaptive

reuses?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MS. HEALEY: Can you tell me what you

mean by that?

THE WITNESS: Adapting the structure

and the architect from an older use to a new use --

MS. HEALEY: And on these --

THE WITNESS: -- that is my definition.
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MS. HEALEY: -- did any of these

projects involve structural changes to the

building --

THE WITNESS: Oh, yes.

MS. HEALEY: -- or were they all

interior renovations?

THE WITNESS: No. Significant

structural changes.

MS. HEALEY: So 132 Bloomfield, can you

tell me what the structural changes were to that

building?

THE WITNESS: There was a collapse on

that building also.

MS. HEALEY: In what way?

THE WTINESS: A wall collapsed during

construction, I believe during --

MS. HEALEY: Which wall?

THE WITNESS: -- it was -- I want to

say it was the west facing wall. It was at the back

of the building that collapsed during construction.

As a matter of fact, it was actually on

Bloomfield Street, a partial collapse there also.

MS. HEALEY: And did you have a

structural engineer on those jobs when there was a

collapse?
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THE WITNESS: On that job, that was a

frame building, there was not a structural engineer.

MS. HEALEY: So what was the cause of

the collapse?

THE WTINESS: It was so old, the sill

plates on the beams, they were wood grade beams, and

the structure had been so weakened over the years,

during the demolition similar, cutting out joists

and excavating underneath to attempt to put driven

foundations in, it was a collapse.

MS. HEALEY: And on 132 Bloomfield, the

adaptive reuse as you said --

THE WITNESS: Well, that wasn't

necessarily an adaptive reuse, but it was major

renovation.

I didn't change the use. It was

residential. However, I rebuilt it because of the

collapses during the renovation to reuse the exact

architecture that was there.

MS. HEALEY: And how did you deal with

the collapse of that western wall?

What kind of approvals did you get from

the city for the collapse?

THE WITNESS: That did not need to come

to the Zoning Board. That was a major renovation
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because existing walls were left. There were party

walls on the north and south that were left,

foundations that were left

At that time, any time that was just a

renovation. There was no need to come to the Zoning

Board for that.

MS. HEALEY: You didn't intend to take

down the western wall, however, when you --

THE WITNESS: No, no.

MS. HEALEY: -- so it happened when you

were doing the renovation?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MS. HEALEY: Did you go back to the

zoning officer for a new approval for the

demolition?

THE WITNESS: At that time, no.

MS. HEALEY: Did you go back to the

construction officer for a new demolition permit?

THE WITNESS: I think plans -- this was

a long time ago -- but I think the plans were

updated to show a collapsed wall or a rebuild of an

older wall.

MS. HEALEY: And with respect to the

building, you heard your architect testify that 75

percent of the structure that was retained, a lot of
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it was side walls?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MS. HEALEY: Those side walls, could

they have been removed, if you had wanted to remove

them?

THE WITNESS: You can remove anything

if you want to.

MS. HEALEY: Would they have had any

impact on the adjoining structures if you had

removed them?

THE WITNESS: Very possibly.

The structure here -- again, I am not a

structural engineer, but from the looks of it, it's

pretty weak, which is 257 First Street. We had to

do bracing its chimney. It was hanging and leaning

over. I believe we actually even paid for that to

fix those structural problems on the chimney.

MS. HEALEY: I have nothing further.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I have to

follow up on something, though.

I need a better definition of what you

consider an adaptive reuse, I mean, very

specifically, yes.

THE WITNESS: What I consider adaptive

reuse is adapting the space and the architecture to
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a new use.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: You

mentioned 1000 Garden, which is your residence.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Now, that

used to be a one-story Elks Club --

THE WITNESS: Correct.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- which was

demolished --

THE WITNESS: If you remember,

Commissioner --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- no, go

ahead. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: -- you as a witness were

the one to testify and quite a long -- give a

long -- not testimony, but speaking from the

audience, and in my resolution for that I had to

reuse the foundations and the existing walls and

that was on -- because of you.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, did

you consider that an adaptive reuse?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I reused the

existing envelope and foundations --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Just because
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you reused the foundation, it is automatically an

adaptive reuse?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: That's not what

he said.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I mean, you

reused the foundation.

THE WITNESS: Right, and I adapted the

use of the space also --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: This is what

I am getting at --

THE WITNESS: -- and it's taken

years --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- because I

don't think there is any one definition out there of

adaptive reuse.

You consider adaptive reuse, I reused

the foundation and a few of the walls.

I think we are looking at adaptive

reuse as trying to keep the historic value of the

building, and you know, rebuild around it.

MR. MATULE: Can I give you the

Wikipedia definition?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: No.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I just want

to know what the adaptive reuse thing here is. I'm
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not sure.

MR. MATULE: All right. Well, here is

what Wikipedia says: Adaptive reuse --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Whoa, whoa,

whoa, stop. I don't trust Wikipedia -- I could find

a million things on the internet that says anything

that you want it to say.

So if you go to a planner's book or an

architect's book, the AIA book and tell me what

adaptive reuse is, that's fine, but Wikipedia, no.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: You know

what -- excuse me -- I really don't think this is a

productive discussion about different

interpretations --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: But, no, I

think we need to determine this --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: It's out there

now.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- because

in the future when people come to us and say, we are

going to have adaptive reuse here --

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: I mean, I think

the question here is whether what is built is

consistent with what was approved, and we can decide

whether it was or not, but I think determining the
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definition of adaptive reuse --

MR. GALVIN: I just want to shape that

a little bit.

I think that we can go back and look at

the transcript as to what was said, but, you know,

if the Board has a thought in its mind what was

offered.

It is kind of like a contract in a way.

It's not contract zoning, but you promised us

something, and you sell us, and we say, okay, we are

going to do that, because we think we are getting a

certain thing, and I remember this particular

application in very good -- in a very good way, you

know, so I don't know --

MR. MATULE: If I might, I have the

transcript from the original hearing, and the motion

to approve the project was made by Commissioner

Smith, and she says, "I will make" -- this is on

Page 146 the transcript:

"I will make a motion to approve the

project.

"My reasons being, first of all, I

really like the adaptive reuse of the buildings

there, that are already there that we are using

historical buildings," and I think this is an
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important sentence: "Maybe not preservation-wise

historical, but historical to the landscape of the

town. I think it is important that we keep our

history here, and I do like that, and I feel the

height of the proposed building is consistent with

the neighborhood."

So I --

MR. GALVIN: Listen, I understand what

you are saying, and we can debate that, if we have

to, with a judge. But I think that there is an

argument about we knew we were adding to this

building. We were taking what exists and we're not

preserving it strictly, but there were the bones of

this -- the question is: How much of the bones of

this building did the Board expect to be retained,

and did you honor that in what you did, and the

Board has got to decide if you honored that or not.

And we have a lot of -- and, again, I am comparing

it to other cases.

If you tell me you are saving a

building, like one of the Wonder Bread buildings,

and then we're giving you a certain amount of

additional density as in recognition of the existing

building, and then the building has to come down

because we get out in the field and we discovered
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that it has no structural integrity, then we

wouldn't have granted a variance for that amount of

density, so that is really what the issue is.

When we are saying what is fair to say

to us, if we are saving something, what we thought

that there was certain testimony that made us -- we

knew that you were doing new things.

The buildings look separate, right,

that is why you have the new building that comes up

and goes over, that we understood that you were

doing kind of what the Historic Commission wants us

to do, which is to preserve some of the look of the

old, and also introduce the new, so I think that

there was a give and take here.

The question is: Did we get our

fair -- I'm sorry, you can go when I am done --

MR. MATULE: Okay.

MR. GALVIN: -- I'm almost done -- did

we get our fair share. And I don't know that the

Board feels it has or made a determination that it

hasn't yet. I think that they are still trying to

make up their minds.

MR. MATULE: And your analogy of the

Wonder Bread building, I could not agree more.

I would respectfully suggest that this
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application never rose to that level of detail (A),

and (B), I have to reiterate it, because the

architect testified, and I think it is important

that all of the Board members understand that the

second floor never went through in this building.

It had a second floor here, and it had a second

floor here, but the entire middle of the building

was a two-story high open space, so it's not like

there was a whole second floor that we pulled out

and changed around, you know.

So when we say we reused the building

and we were going to add two more floors to it, that

was the intention. That is all I am suggesting.

Obviously, that is a fact finding the Board has to

make.

MR. GALVIN: That they have to decide

that.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, that

goes to my question before. I mean, what was your

intent, what was your definition of adaptive reuse

for this building versus other buildings, and you

answered that question for me.

Thank you, Mr. Matule.

MR. MATULE: Okay. Very good.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: All right. I
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think that is all for this witness.

Any other questions for this witness?

Motion to --

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Seeing nothing

further, motion to close the public portion.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Second.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: All in favor?

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative.)

MR. GALVIN: I just wanted to say -- go

ahead -- I think we went as far as we can on this

case for tonight. I think we have to carry it to

another night, and then at that time there are

things that we're going to consider.

I think Eileen has to check and

determine if there are any other variances that were

created by what has occurred out there and examine

the roof.

What I would say to you in my

observation of things that the Board might want that

might be out of order for final, but I think that

you should consider these seriously. I think we

want to know when the vine on the east wall would be

planted. I think we want to know when the --

A VOICE: Tree --
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MR. GALVIN: -- no, don't -- you don't

have to give me the answer now. I just want to kick

these out.

MR. MATULE: Sure.

MR. GALVIN: Thank you, Bob.

I think we want to know when the

fritted image is to be installed.

I think that Ms. Marsh made a good

point, maybe we should have a deed restriction here

as to the few elements, and I identified the brick

wall, and we can describe it better, the staircase

you talked about and the fritted glass, and say that

they are not to be changed without further direction

from this Board. I know it is not something we did

in preliminary, but I think that that might be a

compromise.

And four: The applicant is to replace

the tree on the street with a tree recommended by

the Shade Tree Commission --

MR. WHITE: It was.

MR. MATULE: Well, I will address it

next time.

MR. GALVIN: -- well, then it will have

to be -- that tree may or may not be -- you know, it

is early spring. Maybe it is still coming once the
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heat gets on it, but it may not.

MS. BANYRA: Yeah. But can I also,

there are some items in my memo that maybe you could

address also relative to they are both county roads,

which I think you testified to, and there were

conditions from the county to be exhibits that

weren't included --

MR. MATULE: Yes. I actually --

MS. BANYRA: -- and they should be

submitted, as well as of the needed calculations

from Mr. Nastasi regarding I guess rooftop coverages

and on those kind of things, so...

MR. MATULE: Yes. On that issue,

unfortunately, they referred to them in their

resolutions, but they never attached them. I have

reached out to the county board.

Actually I have the planner's report,

but I don't have the engineer's report, and I have

requested it, and I will provide it to you when I

get it.

MR. GALVIN: Other things?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Can we just ask

that the transcript get circulated?

MR. GALVIN: Which transcript?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: In the resolution,



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

134

it says they're going to abide by everything that

was said in the --

MR. GALVIN: Yes. All of my

resolutions say that.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: So the original

transcript from the hearing should be included in

the packet for the next meeting --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: And the original

plans. We keep referring to the drawings, and I

don't have the drawings, so...

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Dennis, just

for clarity also, since this application -- actually

probably because of this application, we have been

adding a condition, a collapse condition, if you

will --

MR. GALVIN: No. There has been other

cases that have prompted it. But at this time, this

would have been before I started, you know, it would

have been when I was a little bit more accepting to

what was said --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Certainly. So,

you know, so that will help us in the future deal

with situations such as this, so we don't have to

talk about how we can avoid this in the future

because we're --
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MR. GALVIN: Just so we understand, the

first question on it from the zoning officer's side

would be, she really shouldn't have to read the

transcript. I would agree with that.

Reading the resolution is probably not

that bad of a deal and probably should be done, and

I put a lot of information in my resolutions, and it

would probably be helpful.

But at a minimum where a zoning officer

has to look are my conditions. The first six or

seven are standard, and then I usually have seven or

eight or nine. You guys all know that I'm doing

that. Those should be verified, and I am starting

to add a condition now specifically about demolition

because I think it should be clear, the plans showed

a certain thing. It should be constructed as shown

to the Board at the time of the hearing, but yet,

you know, giving everybody the benefit of the doubt,

I'll take the heat.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Right. Because

I don't think that anyone on the Board disagrees

that preservation to us, or you know, adaptive reuse

when we specifically talk about it means facades and

architectural character of the building, and so, you

know, I think we are all on the same page on that
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one.

MR. GALVIN: I think that they should

in all fairness, and I mean no disrespect to

anybody, I think that they should tell us what they

expect can be maintained and what they think. This

wall here has terminate damage. It might be a

little rocky, so if we have to take that down, we're

going to recreate it, so that it looks right. I

mean, think there is a fair dialog that's not

occurring here, that needs to occur, because I think

that the Board is smart enough to understand that

some buildings are to old that may not survive and

maybe keeping some elements are good.

But if you are going to tell me that we

are using the firehouse example and it's going to

become a restaurant --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Mr. Galvin, don't

assume that the Board understands that.

I just got back from Paris, where they

kept buildings that are thousands of years old, so

please don't assume that I understand that there are

some buildings that are too old to be kept.

Thank you.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I --

MR. GALVIN: Okay.
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- I would say I

agree, and where I was going to go with that is: Is

there anything we can do to ensure that contractors

that are working on hundred-year-old buildings are

ones that have experience in historic preservation?

Like, can we do something that says

they have to go to the Historic Preservation Board

and they have to approve, or something like that, to

make sure that it is not just a random contract that

they get up and thinks that they know how to brace a

hundred-year-old wall and it collapses and suddenly

it's just okay, because part of what we want is

actually to preserve it.

I mean, part of what I think everybody

here likes is when -- all of us seem to like when

they are trying to do what they can to preserve, you

know, do adaptive reuses, we like that --

COMMISSIOENR MURPHY: It's also part of

our master plan --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- so suddenly

if as a result of this construction, they have to

come back and put something new in here, we just

lost a hundred-year-old building.

MR. GALVIN: Wait. That was important.

Say that last sentence.
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: Okay. I'm lucky

I remember my name, let alone what I said a minute

ago.

MR. GALVIN: Time out. Time out.

We got what you said, but we didn't get

what you said.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I said it is also

part of our master plan to preserve and protect the

old things that are in our town.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: May I also clarify

that tearing something that's too old and rebuilding

something exactly the same is not anything like

preserving it.

MR. GALVIN: I am doing the best I can

here.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I'm just letting

you know.

I thought it was good you set it up and

so I can correct it.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I think maybe

what Commissioner Branciforte was saying is I wonder

if we can come up with what our common understanding

of adaptive reuse is as a definition, just one that

we are comfortable as a Zoning Board, and when, you

know, it's elevated, we are just talking around the
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same thing. It may not have to be an actual

definition, but I definitely heard this applicant

has a different definition of adaptive reuse than

what we generally as a Board -- I feel like we

generally have the same view of what adaptive reuse

is --

MR. GALVIN: When somebody asks us that

question in the future, you are going to ask what do

you mean, you know, because we are learning on the

job here about what happens when people say one

thing and we don't --

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Yeah. They make

up their own definition.

MR. GALVIN: -- we are going to have to

be more careful and more proactive going forward,

and we already are.

I can show you the last few resolutions

we did with buildings, where there has been promises

to preserve things, we have been much more detailed.

I think that we shouldn't have to be

that level of detail, that we should be getting

protected from the building department and the

official down in city hall, but assuming that we

need to be more specific, I will do my best and I'll

be more specific.
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: And one just

final question as it relates to the zoning officer,

do we know how many times she has issued a zoning

certificate without a final approval?

MR. GALVIN: No, I don't know that.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Can we get that

information?

MR. GALVIN: You should ask somebody.

I won't do it.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay. So are

we done with this applicant tonight?

MR. GALVIN: Now we have to carry it.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Because we have

two other hearings on tonight.

MR. MARSDEN: May I ask one quick

question?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Yes.

MR. MARSDEN: Bob, are you going to

join these lots by deed?

MR. MATULE: I think if you mean do a

re-subdivision --

MR. GALVIN: No, a deeded

consolidation.

MR. MATULE: I know we had this many,

many times. Generally speaking the tax assessor
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doesn't do that in Hoboken.

He takes one lot and he calls it the

lead lot, and then he keeps the other two tax

lots --

MR. GALVIN: But you can do the deed

consolidation --

MR. MATULE: -- I will be happy to do

it. It makes no difference to us. It was always

intended to be one cohesive building, so we could do

the deed of consultation as any condition of final

site plan approval.

MR. GALVIN: The tax assessor can keep

it as three blocks and lots, but the deed of

consolidation for zoning purposes would mean if you

want to do something in the future, you have to

subdivide it.

MR. MATULE: As a matter of fact to

that point, if we are going to have other deed

restrictions, we can put it all in one deed.

MR. GALVIN: Maybe. It's up to you.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Okay. So we

need to set a date for the next hearing.

MR. GALVIN: It looks like May 26th

might be one.

MS. CARCONE: May 26th?
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MR. MATULE: Is May 12th -- I know we

talked about May 12th, I am only asking because --

MS. CARCONE: I was trying to get a

Special Meeting together for May 12th. I didn't get

a response back from all of the Commissioners yet if

that was --

MR. GALVIN: At this point, this isn't

notice because it's a final. So May 12th would be

okay. It doesn't require notice.

MS. CARCONE: If we have a quorum.

MR. GALVIN: And if we need a variance,

you'll have to notice.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Are there any

Commissioners who can't make May 12th?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I can't.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: How many?

Just raise your hand if you can't make

it.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: If you cannot?

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Cannot make it.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I may be late.

MR. GALVIN: Well, these guys don't

want you to decide this --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I may be late.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: Three.
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MR. GALVIN: Is there another night?

MS. CARCONE: We have the regular --

May 19th or May 26th.

MR. GALVIN: May 19th, who can make May

19th?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I can do the --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I can.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: -- May 19th is a

Regular Meeting, right?

(Everyone talking at once.)

MS. CARCONE: No. Stevens is June

16th, so either night.

MR. GALVIN: Let's put this on May

19th. I don't know what that does to your schedule.

MS. BANYRA: Are we bumping anybody off

that date?

MS. CARCONE: We're just moving things.

MS. BANYRA: Okay. Because there is

less of a time frame on this application than some

of our other applications, so if we can fit it in,

fit it in. But if we are going to run into a

problem with somebody else, then this has to go

after it.

MS. CARCONE: Okay.

MR. MATULE: All right. May 19th.
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MR. GALVIN: Do you waive the time in

which the Board has to act?

MR. MATULE: Yes, through May 19th.

MR. GALVIN: There's no requirement for

a motion here unless the Board is -- is the Board

okay, all in favor, of moving this matter to May

19th?

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative.)

MR. GALVIN: Anybody opposed?

Okay.

MR. MATULE: Thank you.

I appreciate the time.

ACTING CHAIRMAN COHEN: We are going to

take a ten-minute break.

(Recess taken)

(The matter concluded at 9:40 p.m.)
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I N D E X

WITNESS PAGE

RUSSELL BODNAR 150

KENNETH OCHAB 198
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A-2 Photo Board 167
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N-1 Comparative drawing 245

**TWO DIFFERENT EXHIBITS WERE BOTH MARKED A-2**
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So, Mr. Matule, hello.

We are back on the record.

We are going to start with 109-111

Monroe, and we also have 502-504 Monroe on the

agenda. As much as I would like to get those two

done, I don't think we will get to the second one,

but I understand that everybody is sort of on the

same team.

MR. MATULE: We have the same architect

and the same planner, so I will try to be as

expeditious as reasonably possible.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Are they identical?

Maybe we can do two for one.

MR. MATULE: Not that close.

(Laughter)

MR. MATULE: Good evening, Mr.

Chairman, and Board members.

Robert Matule appearing on behalf of

the applicant.

This is an application for property at

109-111 Monroe Street. It is an application to

construct a new five-story, four residential floors

over one floor of parking in the building with seven

residential units and four parking spaces.

I have two witnesses, our architect
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Russell Bodnar, and our planner Mr. Kenneth Ochab,

so we will call Mr. Bodnar.

MR. GALVIN: Raise your right hand.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. BODNAR: Yes, I do.

R U S S E L L B O D N A R, 52 Long Hill Road, Long

Valley, New Jersey, having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

MR. GALVIN: State your full name for

the record and spell your last name.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

My name is Russell. The last name is

Bodnar, B-o-d-n-a-r.

I reside at 52 Long Hill Road in Long

Valley, New Jersey.

I have been a licensed architect since

1995. I have been working on projects in Hoboken

for probably the last --

MR. GALVIN: Mr. Bodnar has appeared

before the Board previously.

Do we accept his credentials?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: We do.

MR. GALVIN: Yes.
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Thank you.

MR. MATULE: All right.

Mr. Bodnar, could you please describe

and speak up and speak slowly, describe for the

Board members and any members of the public that are

here the existing site and the surrounding area?

THE WITNESS: Okay.

This site right now is between First

and Second on Monroe Street on the eastern side of

the block. It is a vacant lot right now. There is

nothing in the lot at this moment.

We are in the R-3 zone. We are

planning on building a property that will have seven

apartments, three of which -- six of the apartments

are to be three-bedrooms. They are front to back

units. They're from the front of the building to

the rear of the building, and I will show you later

on the plans, and the top itself is a four-bedroom

apartment. On the top we're trying to build some

apartments that will be family style so we can keep

people that are living in Hoboken, stay in Hoboken.

MR. MATULE: Mr. Bodnar, let me just

stop you for a second here.

You have a rendering here. Was this

created by your office?
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. MATULE: We are just going to mark

that A-1, so when you refer to it, just refer to the

exhibit number.

(Exhibit A-1 marked.)

THE WITNESS: On the first page, we

have a series of drawings, ZN-1 through ZN-6. These

are our zoning drawings, and we have a zoning chart.

As you see, we are looking for two variances. One

variance is lot coverage.

The building itself is 60 percent lot

coverage, but we are actually adding an egress stair

at the rear of the property, which will bring the

total to 64 percent including the rear egress stair.

So as this building is four stories

over one, I need two stairs in this building to

comply with the building department. One is

actually located in the building along with a

elevator. One is located in the rear of the

property, the rear part of the elevation, and that

will bring us down from the upper levels down into

the garage level now.

Let's take a look at the floor plans,

as we have been doing, to ZN-3.

We are looking here at the first floor
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plan. In the middle, as you can see here, there are

entrances on the left-hand portion of the project,

which is on the northern side. That is our lobby

elevator -- lobby.

A new lobby is going to be at elevation

5.25. That is five feet, three inches above the

average sea height, NABD, so we are in the flood

zone. According to Hoboken, as everybody knows now,

we have to be at elevation 14 in terms of the height

for the residential floor space. Elevation 13 is

our base flood elevation. Elevation 14 would be

where our first habitable floor is.

So down here, there is no habitable

space. The only thing down here is a parking area,

which has four parking spaces, a bike area on one

side, on the left-hand side, an egress corridor that

goes from the rear of the property, first this way,

and we have two means of egress coming out of the

building for fire safety reasons.

The entire area during the flood in

terms of a garage will be able to flood, so we are

not taking up a lot of area and we're not generating

space that is pushing more water away.

The only area that's protected in this

area is the lobby and this means of egress corridor
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which will be protected from flood by flood

shielding.

The other area will be flood vents,

which will let water in and out of the building in

terms of a large flood.

If it is a small flood, it probably

won't do that, because you are about eight inches

off the ground with the flood vents, but the flood

vents will be in the 12 inches allowed by FEMA.

As you can see in the back of the

building, we are providing a landscaped area with

ample landscaping around the outside perimeter, and

a nice a nice little community yard for people to go

and do some community activities in, in the summer

or maybe in the fall or whenever they wanted to do

it, but probably not the winter.

As you see here, as we go to the

following page, we go to our regular upper portion,

and our upper floor plans consist of the second

floor, third floor and fourth and fifth floors.

Our second floor plan, as you see here,

will have two units and each unit will consist of

three bedrooms. Each unit is 1395 square feet, so a

pretty decent size. We feel like we are definitely

trying to market this for people that want to stay
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in Hoboken, that don't want to leave.

We have the egress stair out the rear

of the property, as you can see in the static line

system, that is where our egress stair is going to

be. It is only -- it's actually ten feet from each

property line on each side, so it is not

encroaching. We are trying not to encroach on our

neighbor's property, not trying to make it so we can

peer into them. It's only for a means of egress and

it has doors off each unit that go down into that

stair and then down into the lower level.

As you see, the third floor and the

fourth floor are the same as the second floor,

except for this -- there is just some modern tweaks

in terms of the interior. And then when we get to

the fifth floor, which is our top floor, we have a

very large four-bedroom, four-bath, 2790 square

feet, which we feel is one of the largest spaces we

can provide in Hoboken.

We are definitely -- like I said, we're

trying to promote family style living, people

staying in Hoboken, and nobody, you know trying

to -- if somebody wants space like that, now we are

providing it.

We go to the roof plan. As we see over
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here on the right-hand side, we are providing green

roof trays. We do it at the stair and elevator

going to that thing, although we are not providing

any in terms of any extracurricular activity out

there. There's not going to be any roof decks or

anything, but we are able to easily maintain it with

the stair, and we have a generator for the elevator

and for the building that sits on top of the roof

para -- on top of the roof penthouse, so this way

you can run the elevator, we'll be able to run all

of the electric in the hallways during any kind of

emergency. All of the electric for the garage, the

garage door, we are trying to make sure that, you

know, the building will stay safe even in a major

emergency.

We feel like we are -- we are over,

though, so we are looking for a variance for the

roof coverage because we are looking at all of these

green roof trays. We are providing close to --

we're actually probably somewhere in the neighbor of

five -- of 1300 square feet of roof trays for the

green roof trying to push our building towards LEED

and the LEED certification. We don't know exactly

which direction we're going, whether to go for a

bronze, silver or a gold or a platinum status right
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now. We're just really providing what we think we

are going to do for our building to be LEED.

But other than the type of LEED that we

are definitely pushing into our building is our

mechanical system, as well as all of our appliances

will be LEED type certified appliances.

As we come down to the -- as you see

here, there's the green roof trays we were talking

about on ZN-5, and some explain the details that

just go to the building in terms of construction

details.

Then we go to the last page on our

proposed drawing, which is ZN-6. That shows the

elevations in the front, rear and side of the

building. As you see here, the front is actually

again in the rendering we have out here on the

right-hand side. The rear you can see on the stair

coming down from the top floor down to the lower

level and out the egress door on the right.

As you can see here, we have our flood

vents that go into the garage, flood venting through

the garage here. We have panels that will stop any

water from going into our lobby, which is what we

are doing.

As you can see, we are doing ten-foot
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floor to floor, which would give us like nine foot

clear when we are all done, so we are trying to at

least get some ample height in our floor to floor.

We are 40 feet above Elevation 15.2.

So as if we were 40 feet above 14, we would not be

looking for any kind of height variance in terms of

the actual height, in terms of the number of the

dimension of the height, but we are looking for a

height variance of about one foot four inches, so

one foot three, one foot four inches, about that

number for our height variance, as well as looking

for a story.

We are allowed three over one in this

zone, in the R-3. We are looking for a fourth floor

of residential. So even if I didn't have, let's

say, the parking at all, then we could build the

building above the parking deck, our parking deck

would have to start nine feet off the ground to meet

with the FEMA flood and actually the Hoboken flood

requirements. FEMA flood requirements are a little

bit lower, but the Hoboken floor requirements at

Elevation 14 puts us at nine feet above the ground,

so even if we didn't have a parking deck or if there

were nothing underneath the thing, we would still

have the building from up there above, we could only
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do residential floors above there. So like I said

before, that would be a difference of only in height

of one foot three inches, than the building would

be, if we went to a different type of a building.

As you can see here on the north side

elevation is a very small building there. It's a

full block building that goes from a hundred percent

lot coverage. I hear that there is somebody else

coming in for a project to the north of us in terms

of that hundred by a hundred foot lot next door to

us, and the building to the right of us, as you can

see in the shaded-in area, we are a little bit

higher than that, about eight feet higher than they

are from the top of their parapet to the top of our

parapet.

They are also providing a two feet

eight parapet at the low section and a five foot

parapet at the higher sections. The two foot

eight -- and then there will be a rail inside of

that two foot eight just to make it a little bit

higher to protect the firemen and protect anybody

that goes on that roof in terms of, you know, making

it to the trays and everything. But if you go

there, that will be at least maybe a five foot

maximum height in terms of for our parapet, but
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couldn't be in Hoboken, so...

MR. MATULE: If you don't mind, could

you go back to the sheet where the garage is?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. MATULE: I just want to go over

some points with you.

THE WITNESS: No problem.

We are going back to sheet ZN-3.

MR. MATULE: ZN-3, you are showing

on-site detention?

THE WITNESS: Yes. We are going to be

doing an on-site detention system, that will meet or

exceed what the North Hudson Sewerage Authority is

requiring. My engineer has not had a chance to

finish it. His wife is ill, and she is in the

hospital for two months, otherwise we would have

already provided that, but, you know, I don't really

want to push him that hard especially under a family

situation.

MR. MATULE: And you already talked

about having bike racks.

Are you going to have a car charger in

the garage?

THE WITNESS: Yes. We are going to

have a car charging station in the bays.
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MR. MATULE: And in addition to the

regular or standard pedestrian warning light, you

are going to have LED strips on the side of the

garage also?

THE WITNESS: Yes. We will LED strips

on the sides, on both sides of the garage, as well

as the outside pedestrian warning device above the

garage door.

MR. MATULE: And the building is being

set at a zero front yard depth, correct?

THE WITNESS: That is correct. Our

neighbors to the north and to the south are at zero

on the block. I think there is only one building

all the way at the corner of Second and Monroe that

actually has a setback, so...

MR. MATULE: And just to be clear, the

building as is shown in the drawings from grade is

50 feet, correct?

THE WITNESS: Fifty feet, yes, correct.

MR. MATULE: But it's 42 feet above the

base flood elevation?

THE WITNESS: It would be 41 foot three

inches above the base flood elevation.

MR. MATULE: All right.

You received the H2M letters of
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February 3rd and April 14th?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. Yes, I

received both of the letters.

MR. MATULE: And you don't have any

issues addressing any of Mr. Marsden's comments?

THE WITNESS: No. Out of the 30-odd

items, that we addressed earlier, there are a couple

small items that are still remaining to be

addressed, and I will address them, if everything is

approved here tonight, I will put them back into the

final signing drawings for both this one, and there

is some landscaping conditions on the EFB

Associates.

MR. MATULE: Just one question. On the

rear egress stair, what is the overall depth of that

stair?

THE WITNESS: Yes. The overall depth

of the egress stair, if you go here, it's six feet

eight inches is to the rear part of the stair, and

the stair itself is 20 -- 29 feet eight. So it is

six feet eight and 29 feet six is the overall length

of the stair with a platform in that location.

MR. MATULE: Is that about the minimum

depth you could make it?

THE WITNESS: Well, the minimum depth
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of what I could make is six feet eight. The minimum

width, I am trying to get a little bit more, because

I want to make sure, you know, it doesn't encroach

into the windows or the doorways, how to make that

work because I have to provide some fire sprinkler

systems out there to protect the windows and to

protect the --

MR. MATULE: Okay. And you have one

handicapped space in the garage?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. We have

one handicapped space, which is a van accessible

space, which is located in the front of the

building, in this case right here, which is closest

to the doorway and closest to the elevator.

MR. MATULE: Okay. No further

questions.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So let me just quickly

follow up on the egress stairs.

Are they basically what we call a fire

escape?

THE WITNESS: It is a fire escape, but

a fire escape is little different because a fire

escape you would have like -- it has to be a real

stair. An egress -- a fire escape allowed to be 22

inches wide by having different height in riser
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depth than we are allowed to do today.

If I had owned the building and had an

existing fire stairs, I could actually recreate and

put a new fire escape in it, but if it is new

building, I am technically not allowed to put in an

old style fire escape, although it is the same

concept of an old fire escape you have a certain

tread depth ratio, an 11-inch tread, seven-inch

riser that you have to comply to now in the new type

of stairway, so it is actually a much safer stair.

It is covered from the top, so there's not going to

be any -- you want to keep some weather out of it as

well. You don't have to provide all of the weather

out, but you want to make sure that there is some

coverage on it.

And it's going to be a steel stair with

a steel structural system with a lightweight

concrete deck on it, so this way it will not have

any effect in terms of a fire, if there is a fire or

some kind of other problem, you won't -- the

maintenance will be a little less than in another

structure.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So I am going to ask

you one more question:

How much more can you diminish the
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length?

THE WITNESS: Can I diminish the length

a little bit more?

I could probably -- I need at least

wherever -- let me just go back to the stair --

right now I have eight feet four. I don't want to

go any less than five feet, so I can take three feet

off each side. That's really basically it.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: And that will drop

your lot coverage?

THE WITNESS: That will drop my lot

coverage a little bit, and it will drop down from --

let's see, if I take three feet off from each side,

it would be 26-8, which would be my -- basically it

would be my -- 26-8 would be three feet off -- it

would be 23 foot eight would be my dimension. 23-8

by six foot eight.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay. Let me ask our

planner a question.

MS. BANYRA: Okay.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Is it fair -- do we

need a variance, if it is strictly an egress stairs,

not being used for any outdoor purpose?

MS. BANYRA: I believe it meets the

rear -- I believe he meets the rear yard setback
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requirements, right?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I am beyond -- I am

close -- I'm less than the seven foot deep, and I'm

more than 30 feet from the rear of our property

line.

MS. BANYRA: Right.

So the question is: Is he exceeding

the coverage, is that what you're asking?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Does he even need a

lot coverage variance for the stairs.

MS. BANYRA: You know, that is how we

called it out. That's how we called it out.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

MS. BANYRA: You know, I don't know

because we haven't had anybody purely come in with

just a fire stair, I suppose, you know, but we have

always called them out as coverage.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay. That is fine.

That is good.

THE WITNESS: Well, the building

coverage slash lot coverage?

MS. BANYRA: Yeah. I mean, any space

that is going to be used for outdoor space or is it

literally --

THE WITNESS: No. I didn't have that
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much, even before, even at eight feet, I mean really

like eight feet by six feet eight, it is just a

little bit bigger in case people are going up and

down it a little more. I mean, what are you going

to get, a chair out there at most?

I mean, I tried to put it as far away

from the neighboring properties, so if somebody goes

out, they are not peering onto the neighbor's

property.

(Board members talking at once)

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: I am wondering if

you can address the concern that I have about the

scale of this building on the block.

If you look at ZN-6 --

THE WITNESS: Yes. I will turn it

around. I have another exhibit here, which is a

little bit bigger, and it shows some pictures and

stuff.

MR. MATULE: Wait a minute, Russ, stop.

Let's mark that A-2.

(Exhibit A-2 marked.)

COMMISSIONER COHEN: So the concern I

have about this is that appears to be by far the

largest structure on the block.
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THE WITNESS: Correct, yeah. This is

an anomaly in Hoboken.

Normally, if you live across the

street, I have actually a diagram across the street,

and those across the street are mostly five-story,

and they actually got six stories thrown in there

across the street. And obviously, this -- actually

this block in terms of Hoboken on this side, you

know, the only tall building is on this section down

here, and a month ago I heard somebody proposed a

building exactly, if not taller, I think actually

taller than my building adjacent to that --

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Right.

Well, I guess I'd ask you, you know, in

your architectural opinion, why you think that the

height of this building, the mass of this building

is consistent architecturally with the block.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. I was looking at

like the entire block in terms of a hall, in terms

of the neighboring buildings adjacent to me and

across from me. So I mean, the neighboring building

adjacent to me is not as tall, but I am, like I

said, I'm eight feet taller than that side.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: You're about one

story higher?
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THE WITNESS: Yes, it's less, because

you figure this parapet comes up to about the height

of my window sill, you know, the window.

But I was looking at the whole block,

as in a hall, especially when I didn't know what was

going on here. You know, I didn't know what was

going on there.

I know there is a project slated for

development between myself and up and the next

smaller project. I don't know in terms of how big

that is going to be.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Now, across the

street, I mean, I don't know if it's drawn to scale,

but is your building even bigger than that one --

THE WITNESS: No. Actually our

building is actually smaller. We would be more in

alignment with all of the five-story type of

buildings, like this building here, and that

building there, and that building there. We would

be more in line with these buildings here.

The building here at the end is a

six-story. It actually would be taller than us.

The building directly across the street, this

building here is a five-story building, which would

be the same height as us as well. So all of these
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buildings here, there is only one little section,

this building here and this building here that are

three-stories and three and a half stories.

These two, I don't know what their

intention is.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So on the larger

buildings, do you have any feel for when they were

constructed?

THE WITNESS: The ones across the

street from us?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Yes, the larger

building that you are referring to.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

Actually this one is an older building

like it was in the late eighties, but the one -- the

other, this one, this one, this one, and this one

were all between 2000. And this one, I did that for

somebody else at one point. That was done in 2000,

and these other ones were done between 2000 and

probably about 2005 or 2006, because they look

pretty new.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Just maybe it

would more helpful for me, because it is hard for me

to compare the black and white drawings of the

street that we have on ZN-6, maybe if you can just
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sort of go through above the pictures --

THE WITNESS: On this one here?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: -- well, if you

could just --

THE WITNESS: If this building here

were a -- there's a little small building here on

the side, this is actually one that's stepped back.

This building here would be that building here --

MR. GALVIN: I just want for the

purposes of record, that the witness is using the

top line of photos in that exhibit, and he is

comparing them with the stenciled drawing of the

buildings going across from left to right.

Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: So if you could

just go --

THE WITNESS: Oh, the ones below?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: No, no, no. You

are doing fine.

But if you look at the above black and

white stencil --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: -- if you could

just go building by building, and just tell me what,
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you know, the approximate heights are.

THE WTINESS: This one is only about,

you figure it's about 30 feet high in terms of what

it is.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Okay.

THE WITNESS: This one obviously is in

the 50-plus range to the top of the cornice there,

it's probably about 54. It was a tall building.

This is about 30.

This is about 38.

That is about, you know, that's about

in the 35 range.

This one is about 40 to the top of

that, and then you are looking at about 37 here, and

then you have a little nothing, you know, 22 foot

tall building adjacent to us.

The neighbor's property --

MR. GALVIN: Now we got to the

building, and now you've gone beyond the building.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

Our building itself, like I said, we

are proposing 50 to the roof and two foot eight to

the top of the parapet, and these little indents

going up --

THE REPORTER: I'm sorry. How much to
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the top of it?

THE WITNESS: -- two feet eight beyond

that, so you are looking at 52 foot eight, and this

is like 54 to the top of these little, the

outcroppings that I have up there, the cornice, just

to give it a little look, a little feel.

Then the neighbor's building appears to

be around 30-something, 38 to the roof, maybe 40 to

the top of his parapet, and then the adjacent

property to that as well is about 40 feet to the top

of the parapet, 40 -- it's actually about 43 to the

top of the parapet.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Okay. Thank you.

THE WITNESS: You are welcome.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Any other Board

members?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Could you go

to the parking on Z-3?

There are a couple things I am

concerned about for the parking. One is that you

have a door opening into a parking space.

THE WITNESS: This door here you mean.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah.

THE WITNESS: Actually it's beyond the

parking space. The parking space ends here, so it
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is beyond the parking space a little bit.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, you

know, I can't -- can we count on that knuckle head

that is going to be parking there not to block the

door? I mean, honestly, if it's a big SUV or

something, how are we going to control that door?

THE WITNESS: I mean, I could always,

like I said, if you really wanted to, I could always

switch the door to the other angle, and you know,

it's fine, too. I could switch it to the outside of

the space, you know, out here.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah, but

then they would be stepping out into the driveway.

I don't know if that's much better.

THE WITNESS: Well, I could switch it

so it actually swings in, too, because --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well,

something has to be done there, because I just don't

like the idea of some knuckle head deciding he is

going to get, you know --

THE WITNESS: Fly into it --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- fly a

Yukon and block that door.

THE WITNESS: -- I could swing the door

in, too, if you want, you know, in terms of the
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direction, I could swing the door in as well in that

location, so it is not a big deal of it swinging in.

I am not really using the space in terms of

anything. I would using this little space

underneath there for the sprinkler system.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So there's

nothing by code says that it has to swing out?

THE WITNESS: No. Nothing says it has

to swing out where it's located.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: The other

thing I'm worried about, too, is you have parking

spaces two, three, and four.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Then you

have bike racks in front.

THE WITNESS: We were thinking of

putting some bollards in there. It was under Jeff

Marsden's comments for protecting the bike rack

area.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah. But

that is not -- protecting the bike rake is not the

problem. The problem is if you have cars parked in

every space, how are going to people going to get

their bikes in and out?

THE WTINESS: Yeah. I was actually



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Russell Bodnar 176

thinking because I did look at the comments, in

terms of adding another door in the back section

here that can go down this other egress hallway, so

you have a direct means of going out of that parking

lot and down that hallway, so now that would come

down halfway, so that would be out of the way

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah, it's,

you know, I don't even know what to say about that.

I think it is just a -- hum -- well, Mr. Cohen spoke

about the height, so I am good for now.

Also, the height to the top of the

parapet?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Now, I know

that is not included in the variance, in the height

variance, but you show it as top of parapet two feet

eight inches.

THE WITNESS: Two feet eight is my

minimum height on that location. Then I step up to

I think it's four feet overall. I will go back to

that drawing.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Z-6.

THE WITNESS: It's two feet eight to

the lower one. I just didn't put a number on there.

It's four feet -- it is actually about -- it's only
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42 inches. I was trying to keep it as low as

possible.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So the top

of the parapet is actually an extra --

THE WITNESS: It's two feet eight

beyond the 50 feet, so it is 52 foot eight from the

grade.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: But it

doesn't -- I am lost.

You don't -- you showed two foot eight

inches to the top of the brick, but there's that --

THE WITNESS: The top of the other

parapet is 42 inches.

The one that is from roof to the top of

the main peak parapet, not the penthouse beyond,

just this little parapet here, right there, this

from here to there is 42 inches. That is this way.

Later on I will put a railing around

the whole thing on the inside of the parapet to keep

it at 42 the whole way, but I stayed with 42.

Normally I try to get a little higher

on my parapets, because I like to go to the five

feet maximum, because it helps me out when it comes

to the roofing.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Now, you
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were here for the last application. I don't know if

you heard the architect's testimony --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- but he

said you don't necessarily have to include a parapet

any more.

THE WITNESS: No. You never --

actually the parapet itself in terms of the height,

you are going 50 feet is how they do it to the roof

here in Hoboken. So you are going from your grade

to the top of your roof is your max -- is your

height.

You are allowed in the Hoboken

ordinance five feet maximum for your parapet, that

is what you are allowed.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: But you are

including the parapet because --

THE WITNESS: I'm actually not

including -- I am putting a parapet on top of my

building for a couple of reasons. One for

protection.

According to -- according to the

building, if you put another building next to me, my

roof has to be a minimum of two foot eight in terms

of fire, for a fire to leap over that wall. So on
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the sides of the property, no matter what, you have

to be two foot eight. That is as low as you go in

terms of fire.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay. Then

in the front, is there a minimum?

THE WITNESS: The front -- well,

technically you want to have, and according to

Hoboken in terms of the building department, they

want a 42-inch high fireman railing, so I could put

that railing inside of the parapet, and you won't

even see it from the street, so I could put it a

little higher, you know, put it inside the wall.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So the

firemen don't walk off the front of the building --

THE WITNESS: So nobody walks off or

falls off --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: -- during a

smoky fire.

THE WITNESS: -- yeah. If you can't

see at night, you go two foot eight, and all of a

sudden, you fly off the roof, so we don't want that

to happen.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay. I'm

good.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Anyone else, Board

members?

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Mr. Chair, yes.

A question for you: While you were

designing this building, did the promotion of a

street level atmosphere, you know, cross your

design?

THE WITNESS: Yes. We actually thought

about doing a stoop front on this project, but the

problem is we would have to be nine foot off the

ground.

I had done a Northwest Redevelopment

zone with some stoops, but the problem is it is very

hard now that we went from elevation -- it used to

be 10 to Elevation 14. The minimum I could be here

with my floor would be nine foot off the ground.

That's pretty darn high. I could never get a stair

to work, especially with the new stair system. Like

in the older brownstone buildings, the tread to

riser ratio was about nine inches for the tread and

about eight and a half for the riser.

Today, since it is commercial -- it's a

residential stair, but it's not a residential

project, it would have to be 11-7. That's a huge

difference in terms of how many steps you would
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need. I would be all the way out in the street to

get to --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Do you think

the parking encourages a street level atmosphere

architecturally?

THE WITNESS: Well, I am trying to like

dress it up with windows and stuff and try to make

this a nicer door.

The parking makes it -- it is not

really a street level thing, but that's basically

what we use for anything at the nine foot. You

know, what am I going to do with that space to begin

with.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Because,

correct me if I am wrong, there is nothing that I

see, I mean, there is nothing that I see that will

bring street life with this building.

THE WITNESS: No. There's nothing

like -- there's no storefront or anything like

you're thinking. Like to my larger projects, and I

have done lots of them in Hoboken, have like an

entire -- they some parking behind the -- parking

behind sometimes a storefront, and then I have

storefront.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Did you
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consider perhaps a parking variance and not bringing

parking to this project and having a commercial

space on the ground floor?

THE WITNESS: No. My client didn't

express that they were looking in that direction,

but, you know, like I said, we would be triggering

another variance.

And remember, it is tough when you are

on an inner part of the project to have a -- like a

corner lot works very well for commercial space

because you have the corner. The interior ones, I

have had a problem renting them, and you saw my

project at 701 Clinton and some other projects I've

done on the way. I did little office spaces or

other spaces in the building, and they are really

hard renters. You know, even though I might go

along 28 Harrison, I am having a hard time with day

care, because who wants to rent a space, it is like

1100, almost 1200 square feet. It's not -- you

know, they want more, and I'm just like I don't have

more to give them, you know.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Is there

anything that you could do to architecturally

promote a street level atmosphere?

THE WITNESS: Well, I was trying to
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make it -- dress it up in terms of landscaping, but

there's a nice landscaped bed out there, trying to

make it not feel so stark, you know, and trying to

make sure we have a tree bed, you know, we have a

decent landscape bed in the front. I always do that

on almost all of my projects and put the rail system

up.

It is hard in terms of like, you know,

other than putting in a commercial space, there

really isn't much you could do to promote it.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: You are the

first architect in five years that I asked the

question to, so I'm sorry for you to be the first

one.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: I just think

that there needs to be some additional thought in

terms of aligning some of these projects from a

design perspective with the master plan as our

blocks gentrify and change, street level life is

important, so I know it is tough --

THE WITNESS: Yeah. I know also the

stoop thing is real tough. I usually always try to

promote that a little myself, but now that we have

jumped from 11 to whatever, because I normally would
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say, okay, come up, do a couple steps, get to eleven

and then go with an interior stair at least the one

in the apartment, now I can't even do that. I used

to be able to do that, and now I can't do with this

darn -- with this darn 14 number, it is really

killing me.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Thank you very

much.

THE WITNESS: Thanks.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Board members?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Just one

question -- well, a question and a comment, but I'll

save that for later maybe.

I just want to confirm that what you

said here is that with the exception of the fire --

of the egress, that the lot coverage of the property

is 60 percent, correct?

THE WITNESS: Just the building itself

is 60 percent.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Just the building

itself is 60 percent.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

Anybody else?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: I have comments on

the stoop, too, but I will save them for later.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

Anybody here, professionals?

MR. MARSDEN: I believe when you first

started, you said the flood elevation was 12, but

it's actually 13 you said --

THE WITNESS: Thirteen.

MR. MARSDEN: No. The flood elevation

is actually 12, but the lowest floor structural

member, which is usually a foot thick has to be one

foot clear, which would make the floor to be at 14.

THE WITNESS: Yes, that is what I am

saying. It has to be 14 for your residential floor

to stand on, if you have any kind of construction.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

Let me open it up to the public,

questions for Mr. Bodnar.

MR. VANCE: I am Jim Vance, and for a

matter of record, my wife Joan Aibel, owns the

building to the south of this particular building,

proposed structure.

THE WITNESS: That one and that one

right there, which is covered by the tree.

MR. VANCE: We won't hold it against

you.

THE WITNESS: Sorry.
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MR. VANCE: Although it would be very

nice to compare it, and not have a tree hiding our

view.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. The rendering

puts a tree in, and I didn't notice that until we

printed it out.

MR. VANCE: Although, in fact, you have

a tree there.

THE WITNESS: I know.

MR. VANCE: Joan owns the building.

She is not well, and so I am ready to comment before

the Board, both as the owner and as well as a

resident on the block interested in seeing street

friendly development.

I have a few questions here. I am not

an attorney, so I don't know if I'm going to get off

base, but I am sure Dennis will advise me if I do.

MR. GALVIN: You will get as much

latitude as I can give you.

(Laughter)

MR. VANCE: Now, the fire escape that

is on the back, it's going to have stairs run down

and then it goes across the building, I guess

two-thirds of the way. It doesn't go to each end,

but --
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THE WITNESS: It won't go to each end,

that is correct.

MR. VANCE: Now, I assume that these

are really balconies as far as the owners are going

to be concerned?

THE WITNESS: Well, we talked about

even shrinking it smaller, because right now it is

really this small landing, the landing itself was

only six foot eight by about eight feet, that's the

landing. But like we talked about, if somebody

wants me to reduce that landing, the smallest I

could go was about five feet. This way you have

ample room to get in there.

MR. VANCE: But would there not be a

chance that the owners of these properties would

have their chairs and grills and --

THE WITNESS: If it were any smaller, I

don't know think -- I don't know how you could set

up a chair, if you go any smaller.

MR. VANCE: Well, five feet --

THE WITNESS: At five feet, you're

going to be --

MR. VANCE: -- well, I mean, is it not

possible if the owners would use --

THE WITNESS: That might be really kind
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of impossible to put an eight-foot chair out there,

you have to move --

MR. VANCE: -- but you are saying it is

impossible then, is that your point, it is

impossible for the owners to ever use the --

THE WITNESS: They could use it to walk

out on.

MR. VANCE: -- or to put a chair on. I

mean, impossible to use it for anything other than

to stand --

THE WITNESS: You could put a chair on

it, and you would want to take the chair away. You

wouldn't want to leave it out there as an ornament,

because then you would be -- let's say the fire

official came in to inspect the building, you'd see

the chair is obviously in the way of walking

distance.

MR. VANCE: Oh, no, I am not arguing

that.

You have a door that opens. You could

easily take the chair out, or you could take the

grill out there, or it could be used as a balcony,

could it not?

THE WITNESS: If you wanted to walk out

and stand out there --
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MR. GALVIN: Time out.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Vance, Mr. Vance,

one second.

MR. GALVIN: The fire stairs are not to

be used for recreation or as additional living

space. There are to be no chairs or grills on the

stair structure.

Enforcing that is going to be

difficult, but --

MR. VANCE: I appreciate that. I

appreciate that.

But as we found out in the last case

here, enforcing it is rather difficult here in this

town. So it is fine to have that, but how do we

ensure that it won't be used as a balance?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: But he needs a fire

escape so --

MR. VANCE: And if it's used for that

purpose, our backyard extends, you know, from -- it

is 60 feet deep. This building is 60 feet, so there

is 30 foot of yard, and I think it would from -- let

me put it -- would it not make somebody who is in

the backyard, I am referring to, feel as if their,

you know, privacy is being impinged on somewhat?

THE WITNESS: That is kind of the
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reason why -- as you know, we spoke a long time ago.

That is why I actually brought the stair in a lot,

so this way you are at least ten feet from the

property line to start a stair.

And if you wanted, like I said, we can

reduce that another three feet, it would be 13 feet

from the property line, you know, 13 feet from the

property line, and also your house is set back a

little bit, so the person -- it depends on where you

would be in your yard, they would actually, you

know, if you got to see them or they would see you,

but I don't really know how it, you know -- I am

trying to make it, so they wouldn't be able to see

in your yard beyond that line.

I mean, I could put up a -- instead of

just putting up a rail on the side, I could put up a

higher rail. I was trying to leave more light and

air through, but I could put up a higher like a

screen fence on the side, so they can't see into

your yard, if you would like that as well.

If you wanted it, let's say, on this

side or that side, so if you come out the door, at

least two sides you wouldn't be able to see directly

out. Maybe you would like maybe something like

that. I could accommodate that.
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MR. VANCE: Now, from a standpoint,

positive criteria, the Board rationale, on one of

the following reasons: Proposed use inherent serves

the public good, schools and hospitals, so that

doesn't seem to get there.

The property owner will suffer undue

hardship if compelled to use the property in

conformity with the permitted use, and where the use

would serve a general welfare because the proposed

site is particularly suitable for the purpose -- for

the proposed use.

Which of these does the applicant meet?

MR. GALVIN: Actually I will stop you.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. GALVIN: We are going to say the

planner is going to give the testimony, but the

correct view is the type of variance they need is a

D6 variance for height, and the standard is based on

the Grasso case, and the courts put us in a slightly

lesser standard than what you are reading there, Mr.

Vance --

MR. VANCE: Yes, sir.

MR. GALVIN: -- and the standard is:

Can the site accommodate the deviation from the

height standards in the ordinance.
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So one of the things we looked at is

the street scape, and that is why he gave us that

detailed analysis about the other houses along the

block, but he is setting up the planner, and the

planner is going to come in and testify to that.

MR. VANCE: Thank you.

So these questions really pertain to

the planner, and I'll wait for the --

MR. GALVIN: It was still helpful,

though. We got it out there, and we know what the

issue is.

MR. VANCE: Okay. These questions are

indeed for the planner.

Do you not feel as an architect that

the structure, your building, sitting next to a

40-foot -- 50-foot structure sitting next to the 40

foot structure, and the width and the verticality of

it makes it loom over to the -- to the late 1800s

residential properties next door?

THE WITNESS: Obviously, it is taller

than the other building next door, but like I said,

in the neighborhood scheme of the entire

neighborhood, we have the adjacent -- across the

street, the properties are all of this kind of

height as well as the one down the street, and it
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all depends on, you know, like I said, there are

vacant lots in here and Hoboken is a growing

community, even though it has not been as much so in

the last couple of years as it was there for a long

time.

These properties, some of these other

properties will end up probably expanding or going

up a little bit higher.

MR. VANCE: So -- but you haven't

answered my question.

Does it from an architectural

standpoint not really loom -- does it in fact loom

over this structure that is immediately to its

south?

THE WITNESS: I don't think really.

Actually if you were on the other side of me, I

would actually be more concerned because we would be

blocking more of your sun.

Since you are south, I would be like --

I would actually be more saying, "Wow, we are

actually over him," but since we are on the northern

side, we are not really blocking your sun in any

type of way --

MR. VANCE: My question is not about

blocking the sun.
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My question is from your viewpoint as

an architect looking at these two buildings, sitting

one next to the other, don't you think this new

structure with this verticality in height could be

considered looming over the structure next to it,

especially considering the rather large cornice that

you placed on it?

MR. MATULE: You can answer that yes or

no.

THE WTINESS: I think it is an

attractive building --

MR. GALVIN: Did Mr. Matule ask you to

say yes or no?

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. GALVIN: We are all waiting for you

to say yes or no.

Did you say no?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: That was a lot of work, but

you got him to say it.

Thank you.

(Laughter)

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you.

Anybody else from the public have

questions for Mr. Bodnar?
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Seeing none?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Motion to close

public portion for this witness.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Can I have a second?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Second.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: All in favor?

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative.)

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Mr. Chair, can

I just ask one more question?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Sure.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Just following

up on Mr. Vance's concern about the potential for a

deck atmosphere, is it fire code, edify me here, to

have a door?

Do you need a door, or can you just

have a window?

THE WITNESS: No. Now that it's --

before when it was a fire escape, you were allowed a

window. Right now you would have to have a door

because it would really be a real means of egress

out, so you need a door to go out to that --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: So the door is

our only option there?

THE WITNESS: -- so really you can't do
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a window thing any more. If it were an older

building, where we would be having a, like just fire

escape, and you could jump out the window.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: One other

question going to Mr. Vance's questions, the

question I usually ask is what -- from an

architect -- as an architect, why is it important to

have that top story?

I mean, what's the architectural

purpose of that top story.

THE WITNESS: I actually don't mind, I

mean, I'm looking at it like I actually do like the

verticality. Hoboken is based on a vertical

element, so it kind of, in my opinion, it's the

entire Hoboken gentry of what has been built and

what is being built in terms of what, you know,

Hoboken has become. It has become more of a

vertical society.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay.

Thanks.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Sir, may I ask you one

question on ZN-6 following up on Mr. DeFusco's

question?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: I am assuming looking
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at the right -- the rear elevation, top right, I am

looking at the doors that I assume are going to be

the exit spaces from the apartments,

THE WITNESS: Correct.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So my question is: Is

the, quote, five foot landing that we're

discussing --

THE WITNESS: I will have to move the

doors -- I'll have to move the door closer to the

window. That is what I am going to have to end up

having to do. If we decide that that is something

that we have to do, we will have to move that in,

I'll move the door as well --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: That was my point.

Thank you.

THE WITNESS: -- it does -- it stays

within that living room space in that apartment.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: Mr. Ochab.

MR. OCHAB: There's nothing much to

talk about.

(Laughter)

MR. GALVIN: Sure there is, and how the

building accommodates or whether it doesn't.
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Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. OCHAB: I do, yes.

K E N N E T H O C H A B, having been duly sworn,

testified as follows:

MR. GALVIN: State your full name for

the record.

THE WITNESS: Ken Ochab, O-c-h-a-b.

MR. GALVIN: Do we accept Mr. Ochab's

credentials?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: We do.

MR. GALVIN: We have two exhibits --

one exhibit --

THE WITNESS: Two.

MR. MATULE: Okay. Mr. Ochab, you are

familiar with the zoning ordinance and the master

plan?

MR. VANCE: You are ahead of him.

MR. MATULE: Can we mark those while

you have them out?

THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

MR. MATULE: Do you want to mark this

one A-2?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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(Exhibit A-2 marked.)

MR. MATULE: And there is another one

behind that.

(Exhibit A-3 marked.)

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay, Mr. Ochab --

MR. MATULE: You are familiar with the

master plan and the zoning ordinance?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I am.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: -- Mr. Matule, one

quick question.

I am looking at an October 28th, 2014

report. Is there a revised or an updated report?

THE WITNESS: There is no revisions to

that report.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay. So I really

shouldn't look at this because it refers to 70

percent lot coverage?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I will go through

the changes with you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thanks.

MR. MATULE: That was my next question,

which was: Are you familiar with the project as

revised?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

(Laughter)
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Sorry.

MR. MATULE: Thank you.

And you prepared the planner's report,

dated October 28th?

THE WITNESS: I did, yes.

MR. MATULE: Could you go through the

report for the Board and give us the benefit of your

professional opinion regarding the amended requested

variance relief?

THE WITNESS: So we are in the R-3

zone, and in the R-3 zone in Hoboken is perhaps one

of the -- maybe the only zone where parking is

tolerated, and specifically when we have a site that

has 50 feet of lot width, then generally, you know,

it has been my experience that we generally consider

that kind of scenario we are looking at parking at

the grade level and the residential above the

parking, and that is the case here, where we are in

the R-3, we have a 5,000 square foot lot, 50 foot

lot of frontage.

And typically when -- specifically

recently, because of the flood elevation issues, we

typically in this kind of scenario again have

parking at that grade level, which is below the

flood elevation and residential above.
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So in this case we have parking at

grade, four stories above parking, where three above

the parking level are normally permitted within the

R-3 zone.

On the flip side of that, we meet the

density requirement of the R-3. Where seven and a

half units are permitted, we are proposing seven,

and the top floor is a single unit at about 2700

square feet of living space.

So we have several variances. The most

critical of those variances, a D6, which is a height

variance because of the way in which we measure the

height. Again, we have a five-story building

instead of the typical three over one, so we have

four over one in this case, and 50 feet from grade

or 42 feet from the BFE, whichever you chose to

measure it from.

We have several other lot variances, a

lot coverage variance again for the rear yard or the

rear fire stairs, a front yard setback at zero feet,

roof coverage at 59 percent caused by the proposed

green roof.

So in the context of the neighborhood,

I'm sorry to show you more photographs, but I have

to, because then I can't testify if I don't.
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(Laughter)

So I have taken these photographs when

I did the report originally. I have been back to

the site last week just to verify the similar

conditions.

So from top to bottom on A-2, we have

the existing site, which is currently vacant, and it

had two existing structures on it at one point.

Of course, to the right side of the

photograph, we have an existing three-story

building, and to the left side we have an existing

nonconforming single story commercial building.

The middle photograph looks further to

the south from the site in question, so you have the

site on the left side, the adjacent property

immediately to that, and then a single story set of

garages, and then a three-story building at the

corner of First and Monroe.

The bottom photograph is looking to the

north, and again, to the north we have 50 feet of

lot frontage with the nonconforming industrial

building, another 50 feet of frontage, which is

currently vacant used as a parking lot for the

industrial building, and then a series of, off the

photograph, of basically three, four-story
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structures. One or two of them are new, but

definitely, there is no specific pattern to the

building heights or architectural design along this

section of Monroe.

That is not true on the opposite side

of the street. On the opposite side of the street

on A-3, again, we have development, and again, the

architect identified in terms of timing, but

definitely the scale and the type of development is

again completely modern in my view.

The top photograph on the left is the

corner of, again, First and Monroe. We have a

six-story building, parking internal to the

building.

The center photograph or part of the

upper photograph to the right and the center, it

shows a larger building. I believe there is 25

units here. It's five stories, parking at the grade

level.

The building to the north of that,

again, is the five-story building, no parking.

Then further up towards the street

towards Second Street, we again have a similar type

of development, where we have a one, two, three,

four, five-story building, parking at grade level.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kenneth Ochab 204

One, two, three, four, five parking at the grade

level.

Then on the corner of Second, another

five-story building with parking.

So the character of the neighborhood is

definitely changing, and it is more exemplified --

the change is more exemplified by what is happening

on the west side of Monroe as opposed to the west

and east side.

So in terms of the variances, we have a

front yard setback, and what we are doing is setting

back our building, so it is equal to the building to

the south. That basic street scape has been

established from the south corner up to the site in

question.

We don't need to worry about the

building to the north because it's obviously going

to be gone at some point, or razed, r-a-z-e-d. So

at some point, there will be some sort of

development here, and it probably will be

residential, and that is not going to dictate --

this building is not going to dictate what happens

there.

In terms of the -- so in terms of

consistency, we definitely have a C2 criteria being
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met in terms of front yard setback.

For the lot coverage setback, again,

the lot coverage pretty much is 60 percent for the

building itself, which meets the ordinance

requirement for lot coverage, and then the fire

stairs, which have been reduced now several times

will constitute in excess of 60 percent. But again,

we will still need our rear yard area to meet the

ordinance requirement of 34 feet plus, probably 35

feet, from the rear yard, and that will allow open

space and rear yard area consistent with the master

plan in terms of providing open space in the rear

yards.

The other variance, of course, is for

roof coverage, and the roof coverage there has to do

with the -- not with the mechanicals, which are nine

and a half percent, but with the provision of a

green roof, which again is a positive element. It

has many environmental benefits as well as

heat-related benefits, and therefore, would meet the

C2 criteria.

So the big issue here in terms of the

variances is the height. We have one story above

what the permitted height would be. And so the

criteria with respect to that is, as was mentioned



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kenneth Ochab 206

by numerous people, Grasso criteria, Grasso versus

Spring Lake or Coventry versus Westwood, which needs

to address whether the site can accommodate the

additional height, the problems associated with the

additional height.

And with respect to that, again, we

have a building with one more floor higher than the

building to the south, and I know this has kind of

been discussed, but my view is that because we are

on the north side of this building, we're not going

to be blocking light and air with that one

additional story.

There is no impact to the north

because, again, to the north we got about a hundred

feet of land area, which at some point will come in

for development of some kind, so that additional

story shouldn't be a factor at this point.

It is true that the building to the

south in terms of its building depth is only about

35 feet, so this building comes a little bit more

than halfway along our building wall on that side,

on this right side of the building.

So in terms of visibility from the rear

of the building to the rear of our building, I don't

think it is possible to actually see the fire
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escapes or the fire stairs from the building itself.

It is obviously possible to see it from the rear

yard, because the rear yards are co-terminus, but

for me, that doesn't rise to the level of a problem

which cannot be accommodated on the site.

So I think in short, we would meet the

criteria, the Grasso criteria, with respect to the

additional, again, the additional one story of

height on the building, consistent with again what's

happening on the opposite side of the street with

respect to the type of development, which is at

grade parking, residential above. Again, there is

no emergent pattern here on this site yet, and I

feel that it is consistent with what is being

developed.

A couple of comments: There was some

comment on the street level activity. Landscaping

certainly was one aspect of that. But certainly in

the absence of stoops, if it is possible to do lawn

or street furniture, benches, small sitting areas,

which would be out of the way, not in the pedestrian

travel way, that would certainly be encouraging when

we don't have the -- the kind of stoop type

developments.

I am not sure that is done in the other
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projects across the street, but it may not have been

an issue at the time. But certainly, I think that

is something that the Board should start to consider

in the absence of actual stoops.

People come out to sit. They come out

to walk their dogs, what have you, so that certainly

could be available.

With respect to other environmental

issues, again, we have bike racks, and car charging

stations for electric vehicles, and all of that

would support the master plan with respect to the

needs of Hoboken residents and the desire to have

grade level parking. Well, I think I will stop

there.

Basically for the negative criteria, I

don't believe that if the Board passes any or all of

these variances, there would be any substantial

detriment to the public good, nor would there be any

substantial impairment to the zone plan.

Again, I think the C variances are

minor in nature, and the D variance is again

consistent with what is currently being developed

along this section of roadway.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: I have to just jump in
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here.

You testified that you thought that the

building was consistent with the emergent growth

along this side of --

THE WITNESS: I was waiting for him to

finish --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: -- well, that's not

emergent growth. Looking at the street scape on

ZN-6, I think the emergent growth is what is

proposed by this building. The rest of the street

scape is lower buildings.

THE WITNESS: On this side.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: On his side of the

street.

On the opposite side of the street, I

think there was testimony by the architect that they

may have been built earlier under a regime that

allowed five stories. Is that it?

THE WTINESS: Well, I think most of

them were in the 2000 to 2010 time frame, if I

remember correct.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: So you think they were

done by variance?

THE WITNESS: They could have been,

yes.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: You are not sure,

though?

THE WITNESS: No.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: I believe the

architect testified it was built in the eighties.

THE WITNESS: I think one was in the

eighties.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: And the rest

were in 2000 -- the 2000s --

THE WITNESS: But if you look at this

side of the street, certainly the architectural

character of this side of the street is mixed, and

that's not unusual from a perspective of an area

which is in the development stages, where you have

different building heights.

If you look at the R-3 zoning and take

the flood elevations, we are allowed to have a

building that would be 40 feet above the finished

flood elevation. So if we did a different type of

building, it would be generally -- and we met the

requirement, it would generally be, let's say, two

foot lower than that what we are proposing.

And then, of course, when we have that

type of application, we have an issue as to what to

do with that bottom floor, that bottom space,
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because it counts as a floor or story, but it's

usually not high enough in order to have any

functional use, so it is storage or what have you.

So in this case for the extra, extra

two feet, we are able to provide four parking

spaces, yet the building height, because we have

parking, it is considered a different way, and we

have a more substantial building height issue --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Let me ask one last

question --

THE WITNESS: -- so it is a

conundrum --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: -- we appreciate it.

Let me ask one last question before I

turn it over to my fellow Commissioners.

I know we are supposed to look at the

existing conditions when we assess these new

proposed developments, but it is hard for me not to

comment that if the owner of the lot south of Mr.

Vance's building came in and said, well, I want to

build a five-story building, there will be an impact

on light and air for Mr. Vance based on the

testimony of --

MR. VANCE: Ms. Aibel. She owns the

building.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: My apologies. Excuse

me. That the tenant of the building testified to.

(Laughter)

THE WITNESS: Well, it's possible, but

what we do is we deal with each case as it comes in

and so --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: -- so that is the

criteria.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Any other questions?

Ms. Murphy?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Okay. I think

you were kind of asking, but I am still unclear.

So the R-3 requirement is a three-story

over one parking?

THE WITNESS: Right.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: So you would

already have that first floor as parking anyway.

THE WITNESS: Right, and three above

that.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: And three above

it.

So it is not really about the base

flood level, if you are -- I mean, you are saying

you can go up higher, but for the -- to ask for a
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variance for that, you're already having the parking

being in that flood area.

THE WITNESS: Well, we raised that

bottom level up a couple of feet to accommodate the

parking. But if we didn't have parking, then the

building height would be measured at that base flood

elevation, which is nine feet above grade.

Then we would go up 40 feet, so we

would be essentially at 49 feet in terms of our

building height. We are at 50 now.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Right. So then

you would be coming to us for a variance not to have

parking.

THE WITNESS: Well, we wouldn't need a

variance not to have parking --

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: So it's not a

requirement even though it says it here?

THE WITNESS: We would still be coming

to you for a variance for the number of stories

because no matter what happens at that ground level,

it still counts as a story under the definition.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: I see what you're

saying. Okay.

I'm okay right now.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Grana?
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COMMISSIONER GRANA: Okay. It's kind

of a long question, so I will give you a heads-up.

You testified that the character of

this side of the street, the development is mixed.

THE WITNESS: I did.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Looking at the

east side of the street, the development pattern is

mixed, I think you testified.

THE WITNESS: Correct.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Okay. If we you

turn to the next exhibit, that's the one right

behind that one, showing the west side of the

street, I guess it would be, you know, you know, and

then adding onto Mr. DeFusco's questions of the

architect around the street line, does that look

like the kind of block that feels like a Hoboken

block with good street life?

THE WITNESS: No, this doesn't, and I

said that because this was done at an earlier time

when maybe that specific issue wasn't on top of the

agenda, as you say. But that's not to say it can't

be done, and I think the way to do that is again

what I mentioned.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Again, I may have

missed that part, because I look at the east side of
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the streets, there's actually -- I agree that there

actually is a mix. There's a place for new

construction here as well as older construction, and

yet of the eight residential properties that front

on the east side of the street, six have stoops and

that is, you know, not common actually perhaps in

this neighborhood, and one of the things that we

like to preserve.

So I am just wondering if

architecturally we should be promoting, you know,

designs that try to retrieve some of that stoop or

street line from the fact that they already exist on

the block.

THE WITNESS: Well, here again, I think

the architect had to answer that question.

From my perspective, you do have some

stoops, but you also have about 150 feet of frontage

that has yet to be developed. And when I look at

sort of the ownership pattern here, it looks to me

like there is going to be maybe one development here

at mid block and a separate development at the end

of the block, you know, if things work out that way.

And that one big development is not likely to come

in in a way that would be encouraging stoops.

I mean, in the R-1 zone, when we have a
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20 by a hundred foot lot, stoops are the norm and we

should be promoting stoops. But when we're in the

R-3, we have a different type of character. We have

access, vehicular access and we have large

frontages, it is not always possible to do that for

a number of different reasons.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Not always

possible, but we have seen other architecture of

more than one lot proposed that did try to retrieve

some of the stoop element, and I was just wondering

how important that might be because I agree, we

probably do see a continuing emerging pattern, and I

am wondering if we lose those elements by promoting,

you know, by promoting this type of zone.

THE WITNESS: Here I think it is

interesting to have a mix of different types of

designs, as opposed to in the R-1 or R-2 when we

have blocks and blocks of stoops. That is very

attractive, and it's very esthetic, but here we are

mixing stoops and driveways. In my view, it's maybe

not necessary to continue the stoop trend,

particularly when we have that kind of architecture,

that doesn't immediately lend itself to stoops.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Ms. Marsh?
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COMMISSIONER MARSH: You made a

reference to what you said before about promoting

street life, and you said benches and stuff like

that, and you said something in that comment,

benches if they would be outside of the right-of-way

or --

THE WITNESS: No. I said one way to

sort of introduce the front of the building effect

would be street furniture.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Right.

And you said something where they would

go.

THE WITNESS: No. I said as long as

they didn't interfere with the pedestrian travel

way, so we don't want to put them out where

pedestrians would actually be walking by. If the

sidewalk is wide enough to set them back, you know,

against the building or on the side yard, if

possible.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Maybe I am asking

this question too late, but couldn't that be

accommodated if you didn't ask for the zero -- the

variance to make a zero foot back -- setback?

I mean, if there is an acknowledgement

that you're not -- first off, if you had a ten-foot
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setback, which you're allowed to do, you could

accommodate a stoop in there. But if what we are

trying to do is promote street life, that can be

promoted by, you know, sort of a seat foot wall or

benches or whatever you wanted, and that could be

accommodated outside of the public right-of-way, I

mean, couldn't it be accommodated outside of the

right-of-way, if you didn't have -- you know, you

didn't ask for the variance for the zero foot

setback?

THE WITNESS: You know, it's true, but

we're sort of balancing two objectives, and one

objective is to have a consistent street building

line, and the other objective now is to try to

instill some street life into that building line,

so --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I'm sorry. So --

THE WITNESS: -- again, I don't have an

issue with -- again, it is your decision, of course,

but I don't have an issue with aligning the fronts

of the buildings because that sets a pattern of, you

know, the street scape itself, but to try to inject

in some furniture into that.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Every time I think

I remember what the master plan says, somebody comes
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up with something different.

Does it actually say anything about

aligning the storefronts -- I mean, the street --

the facade fronts?

Does anything in the master plan

suggest that we line up the fronts?

THE WITNESS: Well, I think the master

plan talks about street scape, and one of the those

concepts is to have a pretty consistent line, a

building line, wherever that building line is --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: One of those

concepts that's written where?

I am honest --

THE WITNESS: Again, I'm going from

memory here, so you have to forgive me.

I don't know if it actually says,

specifically says, you know, having the street --

having the buildings set back or having the

buildings aligned.

It is not worded that way. It is

worded in a more amorphous general way in terms of

the street scape itself and the visual appearance of

the street scape.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Can you point to

anything that actually implies that they mean an
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even -- a prevailing front?

THE WITNESS: Well, not now, no, I

don't have that with me.

But, you know, we have been talking --

you know, I've been coming here for a long time,

we've been talking about that consistently about

having a consistent building line of setbacks that

establishes a street scape visual image, that we

never had actually an issue with.

No one has ever actually -- well, maybe

once, somebody challenged the variance that, you

know, brought the buildings up to the front line --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: I don't think that

this is the right Board to talk about what we have

been doing for years and it suddenly changed.

THE WTINESS: I'm talking from my

experience, not necessarily --

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Fair enough.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Not ours.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: So I just also --

back to the 40 feet.

So if you don't have any parking, you

are saying you are allowed to build to 40 feet above

base flood elevation?

THE WITNESS: Correct.
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COMMISSIONER MARSH: If you can add

parking, then you only can build to 40 feet as of

right, is that true?

THE WITNESS: Correct, because you are

measuring your height from grade at that point.

That is my experience.

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mike?

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Mr. Chair,

yeah.

So I'm desperately trying to find a

reason why the parking is a benefit, a positive

benefit to the community over, as I mentioned

before, promoting a street friendly, lively ground

floor.

So can you just shed some light on your

opinions on this parking garage, and why it could be

a benefit, if we are losing a spot and a half of

street parking to this building?

THE WITNESS: Well, a couple of things.

First, in terms of the use of space, I

already spoke about the fact that we have to elevate

the first floor anyway. And when we do that, we end

up with nine feet of space between grade and the top

of the ceilings of the grade level.
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So you increase that by one foot, and

you have got an efficient use of space, which is

getting vehicles off the street to accommodate the

seven --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: But it is not

the only use of the ground floor space. Commercial

space could be perceived as actually a community

benefit on a block where none exists, providing

services to the community, no?

THE WITNESS: It could, but not without

a variance, because in order to put the commercial

space here --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Sure.

You're --

THE WITNESS: -- you need two other

retail uses on the same block --

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: You are coming

for a D variance, so I mean, you know, I would argue

that maybe you might want to consider another

variance.

That is all I have.

Thank you.

MS. BANYRA: Mr. Chair, can I just --

so no parking is required for five units.

Anything over five, there's a space
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required for each unit. So technically, this

requires two parking. In order to get rid of the

parking, they would need a parking variance. That

is what the ordinance calls for.

So anything like we have no parking

required for up to five, and after five, a parking

space is required.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: So if you take

that chain of thought, then the governing height is

going to be three over one maximum 40, so their

height variance is actually 13 -- whatever -- 13, 14

feet high, they're looking for an extra story and 14

feet --

MS. BANYRA: Four stories. I mean the

ordinance reads, it does accommodate -- it does

allow for parking. It says that you are three over

one, and that's over one, meaning parking, when you

have parking.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: It is three over

one with a maximum of 30 feet over the parking, I

think is what you're just reading --

MS. BANYRA: 30 feet over parking,

yeah --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- actually I

think it's a maximum of 40 feet.
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MS. BANYRA: -- the total of 40 feet,

but it's three stories, and you are over the

parking, correct, and it's above the base flood

elevation --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: No, it is not

actually. This one doesn't look like -- this one

doesn't look like it's above base flood elevation.

It's a maximum of 43 over parking.

MS. BANYRA: Yeah, you know, I read

that again tonight, too, and I am not sure that that

is how it has been interpreted. But I agree with

you in your read, but I'm not sure that that is how

it's been interpreted.

MR. GALVIN: Or you could grant a

variance for -- if you were going three over one,

and you were going to come out at some number a

little over 40, that would be your justification for

granting the variance in height because you are

trying to comply with FEMA. But if you are asking

for a lot more height --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: They don't really

have to comply with FEMA that much, right, because

they are putting parking in as Carol was saying,

they're putting parking in that -- that --

MR. GALVIN: Right. So where they
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start, I guess you guys should --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: They are starting

with required parking. It looks like the governing

sentence is the 30 -- the three stories or 30 over

that, so --

MR. GALVIN: Well, you can have parking

within -- you can have parking below base flood

elevation and storage, so where you start habitation

above the base flood elevation, you're right. You

don't really need to like -- if you are starting at

a reasonable location that you could stay within the

code, then you would lose that justification.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Right. But the

height variance is really 14 feet. It's not the

incremental -- it's not only a story --

four-story -- but the measure is now 40 feet. It's

not 40 over base flood --

MS. BANYRA: That's correct --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- it's 30 over

parking --

MS. BANYRA: -- no, that's correct.

That's how it reads.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- so it's a much

bigger height variance than we thought.

MR. GALVIN: I'm deferring to the
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planner on that item.

MS. BANYRA: That's how it reads, yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So --

COMMISSIONER FISHER: No. They are

asking for an extra story and an extra 14 feet.

MS. BANYRA: According to -- you are

correct in the way that -- I just read this again --

MR. GALVIN: Since we're not in

deliberations, I think you have a right to respond

to it, but --

MR. MATULE: I just want to clarify one

point.

We are asking for an additional ten

feet. The height of the building to the roof slab

from the sidewalk is 50 feet, and that is how we are

measuring it. So I understand your point, and your

point is well taken. We are asking for an

additional ten feet.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: Got it. Okay.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Hum, I'm

sorry.

So the top floor of this building has

how many units, two units or one?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: One more.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: One on top?
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MR. MATULE: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So at what

point -- this may be better for the architect -- but

at what point do you have to start considering

providing an ADA parking space? There's a certain X

number -- X number of spaces, therefore you have to

provide one ADA space?

MR. BODNAR: ADA parking is the first,

no matter what, the first parking space would have

to be ADA --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: No matter --

MR. BODNAR: -- you have to have at

least one parking space, and then you go over from a

certain amount, over that number, so that is how it

works.

So you could have the first space --

you could have one space, and that space has to be

ADA --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay.

That's the first time I'm hearing it --

MR. BODNAR: -- so it has to be a van

space, which means it has two spaces because you

have two eight foot by eight foot by eight, you

know, spaces there. And then if you want an extra

space, you go over from that --
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COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: I think in

the past, we've heard differently.

MS. BANYRA: No. We've always had ADA,

and it's almost always, Jeff, correct me if I'm

wrong, it's van accessible. So I believe that's --

maybe you haven't heard it explained that way, but

that is how it is always drawn up.

MR. MARSDEN: Zero to 25, you need one

handicapped space, so if you have two spaces, one of

them has to be handicapped.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: That's fine.

Gotcha.

All right. These buildings that you

are talking about next door, the empty lots, that

you referred to, and you say you believe that some

day they are going to be in front of this Board

and --

THE WITNESS: I just said that they

will probably be developed, since the preexisting

nonconforming use on those --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: You know

what, I am going to chill out tonight. I'm starting

to --

(Laughter)

-- because everything that I heard so
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far, and correct me if I am wrong, please, is that

we keep hearing that these buildings next door are

going to be in front of the Board soon, and we can

assume that they're also going to be asking for

variances --

THE WITNESS: I never said they were

going to be in front of the Board. I just said

that --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: They are

going to be developed.

THE WITNESS: -- certainly ripe for

development. I mean, certainly anybody that looks

at that property would say that --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Would say

what?

THE WITNESS: -- they are ripe for

development.

What that development would be more

than likely would be residential, and I stop there.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So if they

built -- if they are built to code, they are going

to be shorter than your proposed building.

THE WITNESS: Yes, if they are built to

code.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: So we can



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kenneth Ochab 230

speculate that the future development may be smaller

than this bigger building, than your new building.

THE WITNESS: You could speculate the

other way, too, because here is the problem. The

problem is that somebody is going to calculate the

density and they're going to calculate the density,

and it's going to say 14 units. Okay. 14 units

divided up into reasonable space that is marketable,

that meets the demand and the needs of Hoboken's

future and current residents is going to be four

stories over one, you know, that sort of thing.

That's the issue.

So from my perspective, and again, it

is speculation, that we are likely to see another

development, maybe two, that would be pretty much

consistent with what we are looking at today.

MS. BANYRA: Just so the Board members

know, we do have an application before us that is on

hold. It's coming in I guess next month. I think

it is 113-121 -- is that the number -- Monroe, so

there is one coming in, and that is proposed as five

stories.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: It is that block

then --

MS. BANYRA: Yeah --
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COMMISSIONER FISHER: -- it's the flat

building that they are talking about.

THE WITNESS: I didn't actually know

that, so --

MS. BANYRA: I think Mr. Vance was --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: All right.

I was going to say because if you show up to give

testimony, I am going to be (indicating) --

(Laughter)

-- was the height zoned down, so to

speak, since --

MS. BANYRA: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: When was the

last time it was zoned down?

MS. BANYRA: 2002.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: 2002.

So those buildings across the street

were built -- the ones that were built in '90 were

built under the old height variance -- code --

MS. BANYRA: There were two down zones.

One I think in '98 and 2002.

At one point I think this area had six

stories that was permitted.

Then from '98 to 2002, it went to five

stories, so they got their approval before that



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Kenneth Ochab 232

ordinance changed, and then built 2004 or 2005, but

they had their approval, so they could have built

five stories or --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Sure.

So the governing body's -- and this is

open to both planners -- the governing body's idea

I guess was to lower heights in this by decreasing

the height ordinance?

THE WITNESS: That is your ordinance.

MS. BANYRA: Is that a question?

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yeah.

I mean, why did the city council -- why

did the city council pass an ordinance saying, we

are going to lower heights?

Was it because they wanted to lower

heights, or was there some other reason behind it?

MR. GALVIN: Guess what. That is the

Zoning Board's determination.

You have to try to determine what the

governing body intended.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Okay.

That's fine. Thanks.

I am good.

Thanks.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: I think we are getting

close to deliberations, so any questions at the

table?

Okay. Let me open it up to the public,

please.

Mr. Vance?

MR. VANCE: If the Chair would allow me

to address this issue.

I am looking at a report from EFP

Associates, the planner for the Planning Board, and

she referred to the master plan. Land use

recommendations: Promote and enhance Hoboken's

historic character and design image.

How does this building that is being

proposed as it relates to the buildings to the south

enhance Hoboken's historic character and design

image?

THE WITNESS: Well, first of all, these

are general comments that the master plan puts out

concerning land use in general, so they are not

specifically oriented towards Monroe Street itself,

but the answer to your question is that the master

plan recognizes that there is going to be older

buildings and newer buildings, and what the master

plan is saying is that there should be design
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elements that are consistent amongst those. It is

not that we are replicating the old historic

buildings. That is not what the master plan seeks

to do or encourages, but establishing a development

that is, again, within somewhat of a consistent

nature with respect to a street scape or a street

which has a specific pattern of development.

That is not the case here because we

have different development -- we have different

buildings. We have different age of buildings. We

have different development patterns or

development -- or building design elements, which do

not create one unified pattern similar to the R-1

zone, specifically along, let's say, Garden Street

or Bloomfield Street that have consistent patterns

of development.

MR. VANCE: So it is your opinion that

this structure is such that it enhances the historic

character and design image of this particular block,

of the east side of this particular block?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. VANCE: And what makes you say

that?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Vance, I think he

just said that, and we do have your point.
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(Laughter)

MR. VANCE: Sorry.

Promote the compatibility in scale,

density and design and orientation between new and

existing development.

How is it that this structure that you

are proposing is compatible in scale?

Is it compatible in scale?

THE WITNESS: Well, if you read the

words underneath that statement, it talks about the

relationship between the old and new development, so

I think what I explained before pretty much covers

it with respect to the design elements that

recognize the older structures together with the

newer structures.

MR. VANCE: Regarding negative

criteria -- I am sorry, when it comes to positive

criteria, and correct me if I am not on the right

legal case, but the applicant is to try support

rationale for one of the following reasons:

Proposed use, public school, so on, so forth, does

meet that?

THE WITNESS: Well, let me just

interrupt here because the criteria that you are

going through is the criteria that we would use for
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a use variance or a D-1 use variance. That criteria

for the height variance is not based on those

elements.

MR. VANCE: I will be glad to accept

that.

Does this -- does this impact the

adjacent properties, and whether or not deviation or

the variance proposed compares the character of the

area, again, I am referring to the east side of the

street, so as to constitute substantial detriment to

the public good.

THE WITNESS: Here, again, I spoke

about if we are talking about the addition of one

story within the allowable footprint of the

building, which is 60 percent coverage, so the issue

is what is the impact of that one additional story.

And I think I said that because you are south of the

property, you know, sometimes we talk about where

the sun would come around and how it might impact

adjacent properties, but you are south of us, so in

my view, there wouldn't be any substantial impact

with respect to that additional story.

You don't have a rooftop garden or a

rooftop deck --

MR. VANCE: No, we do not.
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THE WITNESS: -- so, you know, there is

no impact there, and the impact has to be

substantial. Every development has some impact to

someone, but the key is whether that impact is

substantial, and that is for the Board to decide.

MR. VANCE: Might I address the street

scape, the parking garage story.

Your lobby, how wide is it?

THE WITNESS: The lobby?

MR. VANCE: Yes, the entrance into the

lobby.

THE WITNESS: I can't tell you.

MR. MATULE: Can you answer that, Mr.

Bodnar?

MR. BODNAR: Yes, I will get to that.

It's about eight feet wide, but the

door itself is only -- it is about five feet, the

door, and the vestibule itself inside is about

eight.

MR. VANCE: So it is ten percent of the

width of the lot, of the two lots.

MR. BODNAR: Yeah, it's about -- a

little bit --

MR. VANCE: But is it, from a planning

standpoint, if such an entrance is only five foot
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wide, does it really make a face on the street, or

would be more appropriate to come in with a lobby

that is wider, says we are part of the street

instead of just a quick way to develop -- I won't

say that -- would it not be appropriate to have a

wider entrance to make the street scape more

friendly?

THE WITNESS: Well, I think what we

have is appropriate for the width of the lot.

We have an entrance way, but

surrounding that entrance way, we have a landscaping

bed and sidewalk area that is, you know, inviting in

terms of an entrance.

Obviously, we can't do that where the

garage door is located, but on the opposite side we

have that incorporated into the design.

MR. VANCE: Thank you so much.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you.

Anybody else from the public have

questions?

Come forward, please.

UNIDENTIFIED VOICE: Yes, I think I

have a comment.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: This is questions

only. You will have a chance for a comment in a
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minute.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Very soon.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Seeing no further

questions.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Motion to close

public portion for this witness.

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Second.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: All in favor?

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative)

MR. GALVIN: No, no. Before we do

closing argument, we should open it up to the

public.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: I'm sorry. My fault.

MR. GALVIN: No, no. Don't be sorry.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: That's correct.

MR. GALVIN: Are there people from the

public who want to speak for or against this

application?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Now it's time.

(Laughter)

MR. GALVIN: Raise your right hand.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth -- that's right. You got the right one.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the
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whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. COEN: I do.

MR. GALVIN: State your fail name for

the record and spell your last name.

MR. COEN: Robert Coen, C-o-e-n.

I'm at 503 Monroe, so I was actually

here -- technically I was here for the next project,

which probably won't get discussed this evening.

MR. GALVIN: No. Unlikely.

(Laughter)

MR. COEH: But just a couple things

caught my attention.

I am married. I have three kids, so

I'm probably what Hoboken is sort of encouraging,

right, families who are staying, so a couple things

about that.

Anything that you can do to create more

three, and it's really talking about this one, the

fourth bedroom, is good. It's awesome. These are

hard things to find.

So, you know, anything you could do to

sort of encourage that additional element, I think

is a good thing.

Relative to parking, it's great. If
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you can encourage people to have cars and have them

convenient, if you want families to stay, having

parking, having parking in your building nearby is

great.

I mean, my kids are going to Kaplan,

and they're going to Ola, and they're bouncing

around to soccer practice at 1600 Park, you know, so

just getting back and forth around town, you know,

having -- I have got close to an eight-year-old.

I've got close to a five-year-old and close to a

one-year-old, so having a car and making it easy is

good.

I appreciate what you are saying about

building a community, but you know what?

Hoboken also has some awesome parks.

So if you want to see community, I mean, there is so

many opportunities for a community in Hoboken, so I

wouldn't want to get rid of things, you know, like

parking. Just to hope that I put in a stoop, you

are somehow creating a community.

So just a couple things to add, so you

know, I look at that building. It is nice. It's

clean. It's all three bedrooms. It's a fourth

bedroom. You know, it is not a ridiculous deck.

It's really a fire escape, so this developer seems



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

242

to be doing a lot of things that are right.

So, I mean, you guys always hear

complaints as opposed to someone coming in and

saying something positive. But I got to tell you,

when I was on the marketplace, and I was going to go

from -- you know, we were on Willow, so we had a

two-bedroom, one bath, you know, railroad-style

place, and, you know, we were looking around for a

three-bedroom to stay basically in town, you know,

there just really aren't that many on the

marketplace, and when there are, they are snapped up

quickly, all right?

So giving the developer the ability to

add the extra floor and 2700 feet, that's what it

is. I mean, that is phenomenal. I mean, that makes

it so much easier for someone to stay.

So I would just encourage you guys to

approve the project, because I don't think that one

additional story is going to have that much of an

impact on the neighborhood, and it seems to be the

same as what is across the street, so that is my two

cents.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you.

MR. GALVIN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Vance?
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MR. GALVIN: Mr. Vance, do you swear or

affirm that what you are about to say is true?

MR. VANCE: I do.

MR. GALVIN: All right. Thank you.

And give us your street address.

MR. VANCE: Pardon me?

MR. GALVIN: Tell us your street

address.

MR. VANCE: I'm Jim Vance.

I live at 107 Monroe Street.

MR. GALVIN: Awesome.

Please proceed.

MR. VANCE: I appreciate what the

gentleman just said about having room for families,

but that doesn't require five stories of buildings.

You can have room for families with four-story

buildings.

Just because we would like to have some

more -- if he wants a full floor of residential on

the top floor, well, that could be done on, you

know, within right on a residential third floor or

the fourth floor of the building.

So I don't see how it is justification,

to say, well, we need to raise the building, so we

will have a full floor, full apartment. But you can
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do the full floor of an apartment below.

I have gone to the trouble of -- if I

might -- I have gone to the trouble of taking the

drawings that were so kindly provided through the --

your offices, the planning secretary's offices, and

with a little finagling with Word and some other

documents, I have taken, and I will hand -- can I

hand these out to everybody?

MR. GALVIN: Time out.

MR. MATULE: Can you hand one to me?

MR. GALVIN: No. Don't go anywhere

with them yet. We have to see if he is going to

object.

(Counsel views documents)

MR. VANCE: If you like, I can --

MR. MATULE: No. I think I understand

what the point is. I don't have any objection for

whatever they are worth.

MR. GALVIN: So let's mark that as N-1

for neighbor.

MR. MATULE: So you're not an

architect, and these are approximately to scale, I

guess.

N-1 for neighbor.

THE REPORTER: What is it?
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MR. MATULE: It's a four-page, I'll

call it a comparative drawing of three over one,

four over one building.

Would that be an accurate description?

MR. VANCE: Yes, sir.

MR. MATULE: Thank you.

(Exhibit N-1 marked.).

MR. MATULE: Okay. So I will --

COMMISSIONER GRANA: I will look at N-1

and hand it back.

How about that?

MR. VANCE: Did I do enough of them? I

hope so.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Yes, you did.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Why don't you

proceed?

MR. VANCE: I have on the front page of

this, I have -- this is right off of the drawing

that was submitted in the application, and you can

see from First and Monroe going north, you have a

building that is almost 40 feet high. It is a quite

nice brick building with a storefront on the corner,

and then we have three garages in what used to be a

backyard, no doubt. Then there is the structure my

wife owns.
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Then I contend that we have a very

large, very tall structure looming over the property

and creating something on the block that doesn't

exist there. It is not compatible, in my opinion.

If you turn to the second page, I have

basically done the same thing.

I took from the drawing a screen shot,

so I have a four-story building or a five-story

building, and I folded it, so I would get a

three-story building, and I think it is quite

accurate.

You can see how much more

accommodating, how much more appropriate the

three-story building is when it is constructed next

to this building to its south.

Also, if we go to the northern end of

the block, there are some -- and it is not on here,

but there are some shorter structures, and we only

have I think one 50 foot structure all the way down.

So the east side of this block is

really in keeping with what I believe the city

council in reducing the height allowed having seen

what went on on the other side of the street and

reacted to it.

It says that this structure should
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really be a four-story structure or three

residential over one.

And if you go to the next page, as you

can see, the juxtaposition of the two -- of the

front facade.

Then the last page is the rear facade.

So my contention is that this building

is just fine as long as it is only four stories

high.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you, Mr. Vance.

MR. VANCE: Thanks very much.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Anybody else wish to

comment?

Please come forward.

MR. GALVIN: Raise your right hand.

Do you swear to tell the truth, the

whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you

God?

MR. MARAMONTE: Yes.

MR. GALVIN: State your full name for

the record and spell your last name.

MR. MARAMONTE: Giovanni Maramonte,

M-a-r-a-m-o-n-t-e. I live over on --

THE REPORTER: How do you spell your

first name?
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MR. MARAMONTE: Giovanni,

G-i-o-v-a-n-n-i.

So I live over on 614 Second Street. I

have been there for ten years. It is basically

around the block from the said project.

Every day I walk down Monroe Street,

and I actually see Mr. Vance every today. He's

always hanging out with his bicycle.

It is kind of depressing when I look at

the block, because you have a drog (phonetic)

station that's been sitting vacant for like ten

years, maybe more, and then you have this vacant

lot.

While on the other side of the block,

you have beautiful, all newly constructed buildings

that are basically five stories tall. It just kind

of doesn't make sense to me.

I mean, you have a beautiful building

that's going to fill in the gaps. That is how I

look at it. Right now you have empty gaps all

throughout this block on Monroe.

I feel that, yes, on the -- I guess you

would call that the east side of the block, right

now, it is running low on the west side of the

block.
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The context of the surrounding street

when you are driving down Monroe, walking down

Monroe, everything is this height.

And at the end of the day when you

really look at it, guys, you are talking about a two

feet difference -- what we are really questioning

is, is it four stories or -- excuse me.

We are really asking for -- they're

asking -- what I understand you are asking for is an

additional two stories -- that two feet, which will

give them an extra story.

Then when you look at it a different

way, when you get that extra two feet and you add a

story into it, you have an elevator. So when you up

reduce these buildings, you get rid of a story,

what's the point of putting an elevator in there?

And I kind of agree with the gentleman

who spoke earlier, too, that there are a lot of

families in this town that are looking for these

bigger units. They want parking, so I encourage the

Board to really consider this application.

I think it is well rounded. It has a

lot of great features. They are putting some green

things on the property, and I think that is all,

guys.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you, Mr.

Maramonte.

A VOICE: Point of order --

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: May I ask you a

question?

MR. MARAMONTE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Are you related, or

are you the applicant for 502?

MR. MARAMONTE: Yes. I am an applicant

for 502.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: 502 what?

A VOICE: Point of order.

MR. GALVIN: We don't really have

points of order at the Zoning Board, but go ahead,

tell us what you got.

MR. VANCE: It's just a question. Does

this gentleman have any financial interest in this

property?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: We just asked that.

MR. GALVIN: Wait a minute, wait a

minute, wait a minute. Time out.

Do you have any financial interest in

109 Monroe?

A VOICE: No.

MR. GALVIN: Negatory. Just 502.
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A VOICE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Thank you.

MR. GALVIN: We don't have points of

order. We're not the council.

A VOICE: My apologies.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: That's all right.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I know it has been a long evening.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: It has been.

MR. MATULE: I guess I just -- I

appreciate Mr. Vance's comments, and I realize that,

you know, this is very difficult for a lot of people

to kind of use the expression, "wrap their heads

around," and I don't mean that in a pejorative way,

but, you know, we are going through this situation

now with the FEMA thing, and the reality is people

who are buying property and redeveloping it want

floor area because that is what motivates them.

If you were to take this piece of

property and decide to build two duplexes on each of

these lots, you would get fundamentally the same

amount of floor area. You would have no parking,

and you would have a 48 high foot building with a

eight-foot or a 49-foot high building with a
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nine-foot storage space under it.

So I guess what we are trying to say is

that what we are asking you as a Board to weigh is:

Is it a better zoning alternative to have a 50 foot

high building with parking spaces, indoor storage,

you know, for the bicycles and the refuse and

everything, or you know, a 48 foot building with no

parking. And I am sure that there are some people

that are on the Board who would be just as happy

with no parking, but I think that is the subtle

distinction we are trying to draw there.

Because we are permitted and the

ordinance allows, and obviously the city council

contemplated when they allowed it, to have 40 feet

above base flood elevation. We obviously have the

two foot disconnect for the FEMA anomaly, and that

is what it is, so I am just asking the Board to try

to think of it in that context.

The other thing, you know, I don't want

to amend the application per se, but, you know, if

the fifth -- the bulk of the fifth floor is really,

you know, the tipping point here, you know, we would

be happy to push that fifth floor back five feet and

you can try to create the sight line from the street

to be a little less obtrusive. But I think the real
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question is, you know, I think this is going to be

the emerging face of Hoboken, one way or another.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay.

Thanks, Mr. Matule.

Board members?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Let me say I think

this is a nice design. I think it is a beautiful

design, and I think on the right block, it makes

sense, and not to prejudge our future application

which is very similar to this, where it may make

more sense, I don't think that the fifth story makes

sense on this block, and I don't know that setting

it back ten feet or five feet is going to make the

difference.

I think -- you know, I was already

thinking along the lines of what Mr. Vance said

before he showed the picture, that I think it would

be more consistent with the street scape. I think

that we have to look at this to see whether the

street accommodates the use and whether the height

accommodates the use,

For me, the positives that this

application brings, and that Mr. Coen mentioned, and

I totally agree with family-friendly units, and I
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know that it is important for our community, but I

think that buildings should be in the proper scale

for the proper block, and we have had our

applications, where I have been a strong advocate

for them, because I felt like the block tolerated

it, and it was consistent with the buildings on the

corners, but this is the opposite of that, and I

think it's setting in the middle of the block a

precedent for what we are going to be doing for

others.

I know, I haven't always been on this

side of this argument, but in this one, it kind of

cries out to me as being ten feet too high, and

that's how I see it. I think that, you know, again,

I think setting it back doesn't solve the problem.

Even the planner admitted, that across

the street it would have a significant impact of the

light.

So I think that it should be built

consistent with the size of its neighbors, and I

think, you know, again, this is not to say for

future applications that are similar on other blocks

where it's consistent with, you know, I think we

should give it a fair and clean shot, but for this

one, I don't see it.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Any other Board

members?

Mr. Grana?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Hum, I

generally -- well, first of all, on many of these

applications, not this specific site -- on many of

these applications, I agree with the fact that this

is often an emerging pattern, and that we most

definitely want to like it. It is not a

requirement, but we would like it if we could

promote family-friendly type of buildings.

I also actually agree with respect to

the height with the architect's testimony that the

architecture itself gives the kind of versatility

that -- he didn't use this word, but I'll use it --

slims out the mass and therefore, you know, I think

makes architecture itself quite handsome.

I'm struggling with this application

because it is definitely on this side of the block.

The height of this structure is not consistent with

any other buildings on this side of the block, and I

would also argue that there is a blend of

architecture that really tried to incorporate some

of the things that we talked about with the street

life elements, the stoop elements. They're all up
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and down the block. It's probably one of the few

blocks in the neighborhood that has a lot of these

elements, and I would have enjoyed seeing

architecture that tried to take some of these things

into consideration.

I do realize we have the flood concerns

when we are designing these buildings.

So given those two things, I struggle

with -- actually normally on other blocks, I agree

with Commissioner Cohen. You see this height.

The block totally accommodates the height, but I am

not convinced that this side of the block supports

the height on top of the design.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Anybody else wish to

comment?

Ms. Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Yes.

I am not sure what I think about this,

but I just wanted to say something about what Mr.

Matule said about the base flood elevation.

I don't know anybody that anticipated

that the base flood elevation was going to change by

ten feet. That was not anticipated by any

municipality that I know of, especially this one, so

I think it is -- I think there's so many things that
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could have been different here, but they aren't.

COMMISSIONER FISHER: I mean, I'll say,

I would agree with almost everything Commissioner

Cohen said, and oftentimes, we do make a similar

case that Mr. Matule has made, which is we think

about it in comparison to what maybe an as-of-right

build to be. But from a practical standpoint, I

agree with some of what you said.

I'm not sure -- I can't contemplate

that somebody would build two duplexes of 2700

square foot each and not have parking. So I feel

like the scale of these units and what they are

trying to do here begs parking or they will break it

down into something smaller.

So I do agree with the person who

testified that we are short on family-friendly

units, and bigger is better, and they're not on the

market very well. But to me, the right size for

this building feels more like it's the three

bedrooms with parking, and that fifth -- that top

floor is just, you know, a bonus, if the developer

had an opportunity to build it.

So to me, I agree with Commissioner

Cohen, and it just seems too tall for this block.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Anybody else?
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COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Well, you

know, I just keep going back to the fact that the

city council basically down zoned the height in the

city because they felt that the scale was -- we were

losing the small scale.

Yeah, I get it. We need

family-friendly four-bedroom units, but you know, if

they lost the top floor, we would still have three

or whatever it was, six versus whatever.

So, you know, I can't add anything else

that hasn't been said yet.

COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: You know, I

will just add that the height is certainly a concern

to me. I think it's -- not the biggest concern

actually for me.

My concern is that the architecture,

although very nice, does not promote a street life,

and that is something that I am keenly aware of. I

think that the master plan very strongly mentions

it, and this project doesn't accomplish it.

I have no issue with the parking. I

would love to see applications come in with, you

know, and ask for a variance for a commercial space

to perhaps argue that that is a positive addition to

the community because I would say it is.
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You know, I am sure other people on

this Board that getting rid of four spots would be

positive as well.

This application is fundamentally good,

I think if were on another block, and I just wish --

I just wish it was slightly shorter, and it was more

in line with promoting the master plan.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: And my last quick

comments are: I am having difficulty seeing that it

is compatible in scale with the street scape, and I

guess to the comments about the height increasing or

making it slimmer, my view is that with the double

lot, the extra height creates a massive structure,

and I think, as I see more and more of these, it is

not just the height, but it's the width of the

buildings and the way they create mass that in this

case, I don't think is in scale with the rest of the

block, so I think we are ready for a motion.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: I make a motion to

deny.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Second.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Pat.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner DeFusco?
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COMMISSIONER DE FUSCO: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Grana?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Marsh?

COMMISSIONER MARSH: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Murphy?

COMMISSIONER MURPHY: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Branciforte?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Commissioner Aibel?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Yes.

MR. GALVIN: Are there any waivers?

MR. MARSDEN: No.

MR. GALVIN: Don't waiver then.

(Laughter)

Is there any more business?

MS. CARCONE: Yes. We have to carry --

talk about 502-504 Monroe.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Oh, thank you.

Do we have a new date for 502?

MS. CARCONE: I guess at the meeting

for May 19th.

Bob?

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Matule?

MR. MATULE: I'm sorry.
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CHAIRMAN AIBEL: We're trying to

schedule 502.

MR. MATULE: Okay.

MS. CARCONE: May 19th.

MR. MATULE: That's a Regular Meeting,

isn't it?

MS. CARCONE: That's a Regular Meeting,

yes. We just have to --

MR. MATULE: May 19th --

MS. BANYRA: Pat, what night was that?

MS. CARCONE: May 19th, Regular Meeting

in May.

(Audience talking loudly)

MR. GALVIN: We are still meeting back

there.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Mr. Vance, Mr.

Vance.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: He can't

hear you.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Jim, we're still

meeting.

MR. VANCE: My apologies, okay.

MR. MATULE: May 19th would be fine.

MS. CARCONE: We need an extension of

time, too.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

262

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Mr. Matule, we have a

motion to -- Mr. Matule --

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Bob?

MR. MATULE: Yes, May 19th,

MR. GALVIN: Do you waive the time in

which the Board has act --

MR. MATULE: We waive the time within

which the Board has to act, and ask the Board to

waive the requirement that I give any further public

notice.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Can we have a motion

to carry without further notice?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: 502.

MR. GALVIN: To May 19th without

further notice, 502 Monroe.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Motion to carry

502 Monroe to May 19th without further notice.

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Second.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: All in favor?

(All Board members answered in the

affirmative.)

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Anybody opposed?

COMMISSIONER GRANA: Motion to close.

CHAIRMAN AIBEL: Okay. Motion to

close?
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COMMISSIONER GRANA: Motion to close.

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: Second.

MS. CARCONE: Can everybody get back to

me about May 12th?

Phil Cohen?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Are you available?

COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: John?

COMMISSIONER BRANCIFORTE: May 12th,

yes.

MS. CARCONE: Frank, are you available

on May 12th?

COMMISSIONER DE GRIM: Yes.

MS. CARCONE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER GRANA: I'm available.

MS. CARCONE: Yes.

Thank you, Frank.

(The meeting concluded at 11:40 p.m.)
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stenographically by and before me at the time, place

and date hereinbefore set forth.

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither

a relative nor employee nor attorney nor counsel to

any of the parties to this action, and that I am

neither a relative nor employee of such attorney or

counsel, and that I am not financially interested in

the action.

s/Phyllis T. Lewis, CCR, CRCR

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

PHYLLIS T. LEWIS, C.C.R. XI01333 C.R.C.R. 30XR15300
Notary Public of the State of New Jersey
My commission expires 11/5/2015.
Dated: April 23, 2015
This transcript was prepared in accordance with
NJAC 13:43-5.9.


